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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 
Queens, New York 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School (the “School”), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required 
to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the School’s’ ability to continue as a 
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO 
network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the ’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period 
of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2022 on 
our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

New York, New York 
October 28, 2022 

4 



Financial Statements 



                         
                         
                            
                  
                     

                         
                            
                                    

                      

                  
                                      

                  

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Assets 

Cash 
Cash - restricted 
Grants and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Construction deposit 
Property and equipment, net 

$      5,602,753 
100,230 
491,361 
18,796 

1,500,000 
1,911,321 

$        5,120,327 
100,220 
251,446 
67,883 

1,500,000 
460,736 

Total Assets $      9,624,461 $        7,500,612 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Due to NYC Department of Education 
Loan payable - Paycheck Protection Program 

$          240,433 
707,550 
12,240 

-

$             86,800 
639,500 
25,291 

633,903 

Total Liabilities 960,223 1,385,494 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 3, 6, and 9) 

Net Assets 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

8,664,238 
-

6,101,664 
13,454 

Total Net Assets 8,664,238 6,115,118 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $      9,624,461 $        7,500,612 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Statements of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Operating Revenue Without Donor Restrictions 
State and local per pupil operating revenue $      9,085,659 $        8,084,353 
Federal grants 479,827 269,534 
State grants 30,678 28,287 

9,596,164 8,382,174 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions 
Satisfaction of program restrictions 13,454 -

Total Operating Revenue Without Donor Restrictions 9,609,618 8,382,174 

Expenses 
Program services: 

General education 6,115,262 5,413,781 
Special education 852,677 813,400 

Management and general 673,745 694,124 
Fundraising 53,213 18,079 

Total Expenses 7,694,897 6,939,384 

Support and Other Income 
Forgiveness of debt - Paycheck Protection Program 639,065 -
Contributions, grants and other income 8,788 9,156 

Total Support and Other Income 647,853 9,156 

Change in Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 2,562,574 1,451,946 

Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
Contributions - 13,454 
Net assets released from restrictions (13,454) -

Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions (13,454) 13,454 

Change in Net Assets 2,549,120 1,465,400 

Net Assets, beginning of the year 6,115,118 4,649,718 

Net Assets, end of the year $      8,664,238 $        6,115,118 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Cash received from operating revenue 
Cash paid to employees and suppliers 
Other cash received 

$       9,356,652 
(7,256,812) 

496 

$         8,320,229 
(6,696,633) 

22,610 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,100,336 1,646,206 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Construction in progress 

(230,800) 
(1,387,100) 

(255,594) 
-

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,617,900) (255,594) 

Net Increase in Cash 482,436 1,390,612 

Cash and Restricted Cash, beginning of year 5,220,547 3,829,935 

Cash and Restricted Cash, end of year $       5,702,983 $         5,220,547 

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Forgiveness of debt - Paycheck Protection Program 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Grants and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 
Due (from) to NYC Department of Education 

$       2,549,120 

167,315 
(633,903) 

(239,915) 
49,087 

153,633 
68,050 

(13,051) 

$         1,465,400 

151,897 
-

(87,236) 
(40,668) 
(69,130) 
200,652 
25,291 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $       2,100,336 $         1,646,206 

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information: 

Cash and Restricted Cash consist of: 
Cash 
Cash - restricted 

$       5,602,753 
100,230 

$         5,120,327 
100,220 

Cash and Restricted Cash, end of year $       5,702,983 $         5,220,547 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Nature of the Organization 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational 
corporation that was incorporated on December 15, 2009 to operate a charter school pursuant to Article 
56 of the Educational Law of the State of New York.  On January 15, 2008, the Board of Regents of the 
University of the State of New York granted the School a provisional charter. The charter is renewable by 
the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York once the term expires. The School opened 
its doors in the Fall of 2010 in Rochdale, New York with a rigorous academic program and a highly structured 
and supportive school culture. The Board of Regents approved the School’s renewal of its charter through 
June 30, 2027. 

The School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, is exempt from federal income tax under 
Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the IRC and a similar provision under New York State income tax laws. The School has also been classified 
as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies 
for deductible contributions as provided in Section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the IRC. 

The School operates classes for students in pre-kindergarten through eighth grade. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 

The classification of the School’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. It requires that the amounts for each of the two classes 
of net assets – with donor restrictions or without donor restrictions – be displayed in a statement of financial 
position and that the amount of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a statement 
of activities. 

These classes are defined as follows: 

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use is 
subject to donor-imposed restrictions that are more specific than broad limits reflecting the nature 
of the not-for-profit entity, the environment in which it operates and the purposes specified in its 
articles of incorporation or bylaws or comparable documents. Donor-imposed restrictions may be 
temporary in nature, such as stipulating that resources may be used only after a specified date or 
limited to specific programs or services. Certain donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature. 

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions consist of contributions and other inflows of assets whose use 
is not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This net asset category includes both contributions not 
subject to donor restrictions and exchange transactions, and are, therefore, available for general 
operations. 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School had no net assets with donor restrictions that are perpetual in 
nature. 

Cash - Restricted 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, an escrow account of $100,230 and $100,220, respectively, was held aside 
under the provisions of the School’s charter to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated 
with a dissolution should it occur, as required by the New York State Education Department. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Grants and Other Receivables 

Grants and other receivables represent amounts due from federal and state grants. Grants and other 
receivables are expected to be collected within one year, are recorded at net realizable value, and amount 
to $491,361 and $251,446 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The School evaluates the collectivity 
of the receivables and employs the allowance method. The School has determined that no allowance for 
uncollectible accounts for grants and other receivables is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021. Such 
estimate is based on management’s assessments of the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current 
economic conditions and historical information. 

Contributions 

Transfers of cash or other assets or settlement of liabilities that are both voluntary and nonreciprocal are 
recognized as contributions. 

Contributions may either be conditional or unconditional. A contribution is considered conditional when 
the donor imposes both a measurable barrier and a right of return. Conditional contributions are recognized 
as revenue on the date all donor-imposed barriers are overcome or explicitly waived by the donor. Barriers 
may include specific and measurable outcomes, limitations on the performance of an activity and other 
stipulations related to the contribution. A donor has a right of return of any assets transferred or a right 
of release of its obligation to transfer any assets in the event the School fails to overcome one or more 
barriers. Assets received before the barrier is overcome are accounted for as refundable advances. 

Unconditional contributions may or may not be subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Donor-imposed 
restrictions limit the use of the donated assets as to time or purpose restrictions. 

Contributions subject to donor restrictions are recognized in changes in net assets with donor restrictions. 
When a purpose restriction is satisfied or when a time restriction expires, the contribution is reported as 
net assets released from restrictions and is recognized in changes in net assets without donor restrictions 
in the statement of activities. 

Revenue Recognition 

Per-Pupil Revenue 

The School recognizes revenues from per-pupil funding in the fiscal year in which the academic programs 
are provided. Per-pupil revenue is billed and received based on the total number of full-time equivalent 
(“FTE”) students and the basic charter school tuition rate for the school district of residence of the students 
attending the School in any given fiscal year for general education and special education. The FTE is 
formula-driven and based on the number of days the student has been with the School as a proportion of 
the number of days in the entire school year (the calculation is done by using the New York State calculator 
online). The School’s total student population includes general education and special education students. 
The School has determined that revenue from its students has the same performance obligations, types of 
contract, and services rendered. As a result, the student body is viewed as one customer base for revenue 
purposes. The School uses a portfolio approach to account for per-pupil contracts as a collective group 
rather than recognizing revenue on an individual-contract basis. The School believes that revenue 
recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been recognized 
if an individual contract approach were used. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Revenue Recognition (continued) 

Per-Pupil Revenue (continued) 

Per-pupil invoicing is managed on a bi-monthly basis to the funding source (local school district). Billing is 
a function of student enrollment for the upcoming fiscal year, which is the basis for the first two invoices 
per-pupil due June 1st and July 31st, which is a projection. Subsequent invoices are due bi-monthly. With 
the implementation of an automated-invoicing process through a dedicated website, the submission of 
each invoice is done online. After the year is complete, the School submits the FTE per-pupil reconciliation, 
listing every student who attended any part of the year, and the FTE each represents. Based on this final 
count, it calculates how much should have been paid to the School and included in the reconciliation will 
be any amounts due from the funding source included in grants and other receivables on the statement of 
financial position at year end, or any amounts payable to the funding source included as a liability on the 
statement of financial position at year end, as amounts are trued up to actual based on actual numbers 
submitted at year end. 

Additional funding is also provided to support special education services. All students who are identified 
to need special education services or settings have an Individualized Education Program (“IEP”), formalized 
for his or her unique needs. Based on this IEP, the student is categorized into one of three levels of service: 
0-20% service, 20-60% service, or 60% or more service required and provided by the School. For a student 
receiving less than 20% in services, no additional funding is received. For a student receiving services 
between 20% and 60% and 60% or more services of the school day, additional funding per FTE is received. 
Billing for this support is incorporated into the per-pupil invoices and is also settled in the same FTE per-
pupil reconciliation process. 

As the students receive the benefit of these services simultaneously as the School is providing them, the 
School recognizes per-pupil revenue from these services over time. The School believes that this method 
provides a reasonable depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance obligation 
based on the services needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over 
time relate to students receiving academic or school services. The School measures the performance 
obligation from admission or enrollment into the School to the point when the student is discharged or the 
end of the school year where it is no longer required to provide services to the student, which is generally 
at the time of discharge or the completion of the school year. All of these services are bundled and 
considered a single-performance obligation, and as such, the School accounts for these bundled-
performance obligations under state and local per-pupil operating revenue in the statement of activities 
and recognizes the per-pupil revenue over time. 

Government Grants 

Revenue from federal, state, and local government grants and contracts is recognized by the School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable to the government, or when required services have been 
provided. 

Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification 
(“ASC”) 606, contract assets are to be recognized when an entity has the right to receive consideration in 
exchange for goods or services that have been transferred to a customer when that right is conditional on 
something other than the passage of time. The School does not recognize contract assets, as the right to 
receive consideration is unconditional in accordance with the passage of time criteria. Also, in accordance 
with ASC 606, contract liabilities are to be recognized when an entity is obligated to transfer goods or 
services for which consideration has already been received. The School does not receive consideration prior 
to the transfer of goods or services and, therefore, does not recognize contract liabilities. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Contributions of Nonfinancial Assets 

The School may receive contributed services that are an integral part of its operations. Such services are 
only recorded as contributions of nonfinancial assets, at their fair value, provided the services received 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets, require specified skills provided by individuals possessing those 
skills, and typically need to be purchased, if not provided by donation. There were no contributions of 
nonfinancial assets recorded during the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful 
life of the asset or the lease term. The School has established a $3,000 threshold above which assets are 
evaluated to be capitalized. Property and equipment acquired with certain government contract funds is 
recorded as an expense pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the government funding source 
retains ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; major 
renewals and betterments are capitalized, based on the established threshold. 

Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment 
whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  If 
the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the 
School recognizes an impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021. 

Advertising 

The School expenses advertising costs as incurred. The School incurred $914 and $1,222 of advertising costs 
for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is included in the accompanying 
statements of functional expenses under student and staff recruitment. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of providing programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis and by 
natural classification in the accompanying statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the respective programs and activities according to the functional categories, as follows: 

Program Services – This category represents expenses related to general education and special education 
for certain students requiring additional attention and guidance. These costs are allocated based on the 
FTE allocation method. 

Management and General – This category represents expenses related to the overall administration and 
operation of the School that are not specific to any program services or development. These costs are 
allocated based on time and effort. 

Fundraising – This category represents expenses directly associates with the School’s effort to raise 
funds to support the operations for the School. These costs are allocated based on time and effort. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the June 30, 2021 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the June 
30, 2022 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income or net assets. 

Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated events through October 28, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from federal, state and local income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (the “IRC”) and, therefore, has made no provision for income taxes in the accompanying 
financial statements. In addition, the School has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to 
be a “private foundation” within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the IRC. There was no unrelated business 
income for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Under U.S. GAAP, an organization must recognize the tax benefit associate with tax positions taken for 
tax-return purposes when it is more likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon examination 
by a taxing authority. The School does not believe it has taken any material uncertain tax positions and, 
accordingly, it has not recorded any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The School is subject to routine 
audits by a taxing authority. As of June 30, 2022, the School was not subject to any examination by a taxing 
authority. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement 

Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets 

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2020-07, Presentation and 
Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (Topic 958). The update requires 
not-for-profits to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item on the statement of 
activities, and to disclose information regarding each type of contributed nonfinancial assets. The update 
is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. The School 
adopted this ASU as of July 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Issued but Not Yet Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 

Lease Accounting 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which will require lessees to recognize a lease 
liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a 
discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right to use, or 
control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. The FASB also issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred 
the effective date for the School until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The School is 
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-02. 

3. Liquidity and Availability of Resources 

The School maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, 
liabilities, and other obligations come due. The School’s management meets monthly to address projected 
cash flows to meet its operational expenditures. The School’s financial assets available within one year of 
the statements of financial position date for general expenditures are as follows: 

June 30, 2022 2021 

Cash $     5,602,753 $       5,120,327 
Cash - restricted 100,230 100,220 
Grants and other receivables 491,361 251,446 

Total Financial Assets 6,194,344 5,471,993 

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures 
within one year due to: 

Restricted by contract (100,230) (100,220) 
Restricted by donors with purpose restrictions - (13,454) 

(100,230) (113,674) 

Total Financial Assets Available to Management for 
General Expenditures Within One Year $     6,094,114 $       5,358,319 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

June 30, 2022 2021 Estimated Useful Lives 
Furniture and fixtures $        258,768 $          200,428 7 years 
Computer hardware and software 934,446 761,985 3 years 
Equipment 44,250 44,250 5 years 
Software - 1,029 3 years 

Lesser of the useful life 
of the asset or the 

Leasehold improvements 496,352 496,352 lease term 
Construction in progress 1,387,100 -

3,120,916 1,504,044 
Less: accumulated depreciation  and 
amortization (1,209,595) (1,043,308) 

$     1,911,321 $          460,736 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $167,315 and 
$151,897, respectively. 

5. Loan Payable – Paycheck Protection Program 

In April 2020, the School received loan proceeds in the amount of $633,903 (the “PPP Loan”), under the 
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”). The PPP was established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) which was enacted March 27, 2020. The PPP Loan, which was in the 
form of a promissory note, dated April 30, 2020, signed by the School, with an original maturity of April 
30, 2022, and bear interest at a rate of 1.0% per annum. 

The CARES Act and the PPP provide a mechanism for forgiveness of up to the full amount borrowed. The 
amount of the loan proceeds eligible for forgiveness is based on a formula that takes into account a number 
of factors, including the amount of loans proceeds used by the School during the 24-week period after the 
loan origination for certain eligible purposes including payroll costs, interest on certain mortgage 
obligations, rent payments on certain leases, and certain qualified utility payments, provided that at least 
60% of the loan amount is used for eligible payroll costs; the employer maintaining or rehiring employees 
and maintaining salaries at certain levels; and other factors. Subject to other requirements and limitations 
on loan forgiveness, only loan proceeds spent on payroll and other eligible costs during a covered eight-
week or twenty-four-week period qualify for forgiveness. Any forgiveness of the PPP loan is subject to 
approval by the Small Business Administration. At June 30, 2021, the PPP Loan is included in total liabilities 
on the accompanying statements of financial position. 

On July 9, 2021, the School received notification from the Small Business Administration that the School’s 
forgiveness application of the PPP Loan and accrued interest was approved in full, and the School has no 
further obligations related to the PPP Loan. Accordingly, the School recorded a forgiveness of debt of the 
PPP Loan in the accompanying statements of activities at June 30, 2022. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

6. Commitments 

The School amended their lease with New Jerusalem Baptist Church, effective January 1, 2018. The School 
is obligated under a non-cancelable sub-lease for office and classroom space expiring on June 30, 2023. 
The terms of the new lease include monthly rental payments of $58,000 through October 1, 2019 and 
increase to $75,000 a month until the expiration of the lease. 

The lease also includes a security deposit of $1,500,000 that will be applied towards the construction of 
the property. The $1,500,000 security deposit is included in the accompanying statements of financial 
position under construction deposit. 

In 2022, the Board voted to approve an additional $1,500,000 towards the construction of the property. 
The School began construction of the property in 2022. Construction in progress amounted to $1,387,100 
at June 30, 2022. As of June 30, 2022, the School has a construction commitment totaling approximately 
$1,612,900. 

The School entered into a one-year lease agreement with Rescue Church of Christ effective September 1, 
2016 and renewed annually. On September 1, 2022, the School renewed this lease through June 30, 2023, 
with minimum monthly lease payments of $8,060 for the term of the lease. 

Future minimum rental payments amount to $900,000 for the year ending June 30, 2023. 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $980,600 and $980,600, respectively, which 
is included in the accompanying statements of functional expenses under rent expense. 

7. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of contributions to be used for the purchase of furniture and 
equipment totaling $13,454 for the year ended June 30, 2021 which were released from restrictions as of 
June 30, 2022. 

8. Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help 
protect itself from such risks. The School also intends to defend its positions on these matters. As of June 
30, 2022, there are no matters for which the School believes the ultimate outcome would have a material 
adverse effect on the School’s financial position. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The 
governmental agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as 
additional funds for the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the 
possible disallowance or refund. The School is of the opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not 
have a material effect in the School’s financial statements and will record them in the fiscal year they 
become known. 

9. Pension Plan 

The School adopted a 403(B) plan (the “Plan”) which covers most of the employees. The Plan is a defined 
contribution plan. Full time employees are eligible to enroll in the Plan on a monthly date with no minimum 
service time required. The Plan provides for the School to contribute up to 2% of participating employees’ 
salaries. The School contribution becomes fully vested after 6 years. For the years ended June 30, 2022 
and 2021, pension expense for the School was $51,012 and $57,737, respectively, which is included in 
retirement in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Notes to Financial Statements 

10. Concentration Risks 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash 
accounts at a major financial institution that, at times, exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation insured limit of $250,000. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does 
not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash accounts. 

The School received approximately 89% and 96% of its total revenue from per-pupil funding from the 
NYCDOE for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School’s grants and other receivables consist of two major grantors accounting for 100% at June 30, 
2022 and 2021. 

The School’s payables consist of three major vendors accounting for approximately 58% at June 30, 2022 
and four major vendors accounting for approximately 74% at June 30, 2021. 
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Tel: 212-371-4446 622 Third Ave, Suite 3100 
Fax: 212-371-9374 New York, NY 10017 
www.bdo.com 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees 
Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 
Queens, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 
(the “School”), which comprise the School’s statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and 
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BDO 
network of independent member firms. 

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 
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Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or 
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
October 28, 2022 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with U.S. GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified? Yes No 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes No 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

There were no findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance 
with generally accepted government auditing standards. 

22 









































































































    

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

        
   

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

    
 

   
   

  
 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday July 19, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
In Person @ the Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School and Via Zoom Online Meeting 
Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (in-person), R. Wilson (in-person), L. Stephens (in-person), 
S. Brown (remote), M. Anglin (in-person), Jerome Hunt (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 

Guests Present 
Dr. Julie Padilla (in-person), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (in-person), Tawanna Muniz (in-
person) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order July 19, 2021 at 7:12 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
M. Anglin seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

C. Approve Minutes 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Minutes from May 21st and June 28th 2021. 
L. Stephens seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 440 
• SPED STUDENTS – 52 
• ELL – 7 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS – 67% 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022 

• All incoming new students have been entered into our system (3 potential ELL 
students) 
• Eight students are not returning to REACS. 
• 615 total applications on the waitlist. 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

•Ops working with families to pick up books and devices for clean-up and 
updates. 
•Preparing requested documents with the team and Dan Pasek group on the 
renewal. 
•Working on annual report due August 2nd.  
•Working on orders for upcoming school year 
•Need board conflict of interest forms completed by board members 
• PPP loan has been forgiven 100% 
•Financial summary and cash disbursement reports were given to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla 

• Renewal plan laid out; 9/1 deadline – 
working with Dan Pasek and admin 

• 110 scholars in summer school; 
progressing well – teacher observations 
are occurring 

• 2021-2022 School planning update given 
as well as the school calendar 

• Working on filling current vacancies 
• Working on space planning for 7th and 8th 

grade in the school gym with Dr. Rice 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown (NO REPORT – NO MEETING IN THE MONTH OF JULY) 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice (via. L. Hamer) 

• PPP Load forgiven 
• Finalizing sewer line concerns 
• Will be receiving rental assistance for 7th and 8th grade ($990,000) 
• Waiting to see when ground can be broken on new school 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

VI. Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin (NO REPORT – Did not meet in the month of July) 

VII. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Held meeting July 13th 2021 via Zoom 
• Admin presented July report 
• Discussions on board deadlines and amin deadlines 
• Discussed safety and air quality concerns 
• Discussed possibility of virtual learning environment 
• Discussed social distancing guidelines 
• Board training discussed, goals for academic committee 
• Will work with administration to ensure best learning environment for students 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford (NO REPORT) 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:1 PM. Next meeting will be August 23, 
2021 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

Executive session was held on July 20 h 2021, via Zoom online meeting platform. In executive 
session, M. Anglin made the motion to accept REACS staff salaries; R. Wilson seconded, 
motion was passed. L. Stephens made a motion regarding REACS admin staff; C. Williams 
seconded, motion was passed. A REACS analysis will be done by L. Stephens and update will 
be given to the board. 

3 of 6  



    

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

     
   

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 

    
 

  
  
   

 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
In-Person @ Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School and via Zoom Online Meeting 
Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (Remote), L. Hamer (In-Person), R. Wilson (Remote), L. Stephens (In-Person), 
S. Brown (In-Person), M. Anglin (Remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (In-Person) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Julie Padilla (Remote), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (Remote), Tawanna Muniz (Remote), 
Dr. C. Walden (In-Person) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on August 23, 2021 at 6:37 PM 
C. Rice made a motion to Approve Agenda (to include today’s date). 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 

C. Approve Minutes 
R.  Wilson made a  motion  to  Approve Minutes  from Ju ly  19 ,  2021.  
L. Stephens seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

Dr. Hamer introduced Nora Clancy who is working on the charter renewal; Nora spoke the board 
and the guests in attendance (In-Person and Online) on the charter renewal process that will 
take place this year. 

II. Business & Operations Report
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 445 
• SPED STUDENTS – N/A 
• ELL – 7 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STUDENTS – N/A 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022 

• A total of 639 applicants are on our waitlist. 
• 5 seats to fill: 4 K seats / 1 7th grade seat 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Annual Report Submitted on August 2nd. 
• Ops preparing the school for re-opening (screening, technology, ID badges, 

etc.) 
• PPE items ordered and in stock 
• Deep Cleaning, floor waxing has begun to prepare for school reopening. 
• Preparing for Phase II of Financial Audit. Dates 9/17 & 9/18 
• Financial Summary and Cash disbursement reports were given to the board. 

III. School Leader Report
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla 

Mrs. Lesile introduced the new assistant principal, Dr. Claytisha Walden 

Renewal Planning 
General Information: 
DOE generates recommendations for renewal short-term or long-term 
(not a candidate for non-renew,good). Goes onto Board of Regents 
agenda meeting. February, March or April meeting next year. 
• EQ 1:  Trend comparison to CSD, 2019 data  
• EQ 2: Organization and operations, do we see systems and structures 

are in place to make sure the school is using that data (From admin, to 
teachers, to the students- how does data get used?) 

• Enrollment and retention of special populations 
• Financial liability long term and short term (any flags) 
• Board: How often do they meet, quorum, their 

involvement/knowledge, how they makedecisions/allocate. 
Important Dates: 
• By July 15: Submit school calendar via Charter Information Portal (ChIP). 
• By July 15: Send name and contact information for hearing logistics 

point person viaCharterInformation Portal (ChIP) 
• By July 20 :Step 1 Complete this survey for all grades that your school serves. 

Step 2 
• Submit your interim assessment data through the Accountability Tab in 

ChIP. Attached, pleasefind detailed instructions. We encourage you to 
read through the instructions now, as some 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 
pre-work is required if you use iReady or ANET. ChIP will be ready 
to accept submissionsstarting on June 21. 
• By August 2: Submit overview of fall plans (link) via Charter 

Information Portal (ChIP). Please submit a high level overview of what 
options you are planning to offer for the fall (100% in-person, hybrid, 
etc. and some explanation of what a hybrid might look like), with the 
understanding that this might change. This deadline may be pushed 
back, based on the timelinefor receiving state guidance. 
• By September 1: Submit renewal application via Charter Information Portal 

(ChIP). 
• By September 1: Submit master schedules for in person as well as 

any virtual synchronouslearning (as applicable based on updated 
guidance from the state, your re-opening plan) via Charter 
Information Portal (ChIP).. 
• By September 15: Disseminate Renewal Notification in

person and/or virtually, inaccordance with your re-opening
plan: 
• You will be able to access your school’s letter(s) on the Renewal 

Resources page the within thenext few weeks. 
• The letters will be prepared in English, Spanish, and French. If 

you need the letter to betranslated in another language, you will 
need to coordinate translation services. 

• Pre Call Before Visit w/Laurie and Leadership Team 
• October/November/December Visit: To begin- Leadership Team 

Meetings (SEO memberswill also be there). Then same day or next 
day Classroom Observations (virtual or in person) 
• Pre, observation, and post - should be the one responsible for regular 

observations 
• Provide relevant context, observe 30-40 minutes, and then debrief 

Interviews during Visit
• Teachers 
• Other staff (Ops, SPED coordinators, etc.), Parents, and Students as 

available 
• Board, as many board members as possible and prepared to 

answer questions-happens before the public hearing. 
• Will let them know after submitting application or co-create list, they 

want certain individuals based on their experience and years at the 
school, most likelyvirtual. 

Leadership Debrief to discuss remaining components
• Public Hearings: TBD on virtual/in-person, will reach out in September to 

coordinate 
• Board of Regents Decision - March/April/May 

Summer School 2021 Overview 
• Summer school took place from July 6th- August 5th and our school 

day was from 9am-12pm. We had atotal of 114 scholars enrolled for 
our summer session. We were able to take some scholars off the 
wait-list who were non-mandated (31 scholars total). These were 
scholars whose families wanted to enroll them in summer school, as 
spots became available. Grades Pre-K through 5 h grade were in the 
building, while Grades 6 and 7 were virtual for summer. 

• Our teachers provided curriculum instruction with Springboard 
(Pre-K-3rd Grade), Focus Math, andCadence Learning (Grades 4-
7). The Cadence curriculum was new to REACS- but offered a 
great depth of novel studies to our scholars and they seemed to 
enjoy the texts they completed! 

• Springboard Teachers (Pre-K through 3rd Grade) hosted family 
workshops weekly to workwith families and teach them literacy 
strategies to utilize at home. These workshops were extremely 
successful with over 60% of families attending these weekly 
sessions with their scholar’s classroom teacher. 

• Teacher observations occurred along with teachers submitting 
weekly summaries based on scholars’participation, and growth. 
They relayed the modifications they made with regard to texts or 
mathematical practices. 

• Teachers conducted outreach to families (by phone, Zoom, or in-
person) over the last two weeks to provide an update on how their 
scholar progressed and what they should focus on for the down time 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 
inbetween summer session closing and the start of the new school 
year. Scholars also have a variety of texts to read that were sent 
home in their summer backpacks (chapter texts, texts related to ELA, 
Science, Math, etc. and a thorough workbook to prepare them for the 
next grade) to work on in these few weeks before the new school 
year begins. 

2021-2022 School Year Planning 
• REACS will offer a fully In Person instructional option for Fall 2021. 

School will monitor the status of the Covid-19 pandemic to make 
decisions as the school year progresses. 

• Calendar for 2021-2022 school year is complete. 
• Teacher Institute - August 30th - September 10th 
• Parent/scholar Orientation - September 9th - 10th 
• First Day of In person Instruction - September 13th 

Assessment dates 
■ Beginning of Year (BOY) Administered September -

October 2021. Determineindividual achievement 
gaps and intervention plan 

• Tentative School wide Events and Activities 
• Instructional days and Holidays 

Tentative Blended Learning Options Plan for 2021-22 
○ Elementary Teaching Plan Number of Online Teachers (1 teacher for 2 

grades) 
○ Kindergarten/Grade One 

■ 7:30am-9am Outreach, grading, lesson planning, posting work for the 
week 

■ Kindergarten Live Instruction 9-11am/Grade One Asynchronous 9-
11am 

■ Lunch 11 -12pm 
■ Kindergarten Asynchronous 12- 2/Grade One Live Instruction 12-2pm 
■ Office Hours session at 2:00-4:00pm (One 

on one sessions to follow-up,group/individual 
support as needed - RETEACH) 

● Kindergarten 2:00-3:00pm 
● Grade One 3:00-4:00p 

○ Grade Two/Grade Three 
■ 7:30am-9am Outreach, grading, lesson planning, posting work for the 

week 
■ Grade Two Live Instruction 9-11am/Grade Three Asynchronous 9-

11am 
■ Lunch 11 -12 
■ Grade Two Asynchronous 12- 2/Grade Three Live Instruction 12-2pm 
■ Office Hours session at 2:00-4:00pm (One 

on one sessions to follow-up,group/individual 
support as needed - RETEACH) 

● Grade Two 2:00-3:00pm 
● Grade Three 3:00-4:00pm 

○ Grade Four/Grade Five 
■ 7:30am-9am Outreach, grading, lesson planning, posting work for the 

week 
■ Grade Four Live Instruction 9-11am/Grade Five Asynchronous 9-

11am 
■ Lunch 11 -12pm 
■ Grade Four Asynchronous 12- 2/Grade Five Live Instruction 12-2pm 
■ Office Hours session at 2:00-4:00pm (One 

on one sessions to follow-up,group/individual 
support as needed - RETEACH) 

● Grade Four 2:00-3:00pm 
● Grade Five 3:00-4:00pm 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 

○ Middle School Teacher Schedule 
■ 7:30-8:30 Outreach, grading, lesson planning, posting work for the 

week 

■ 8:30-12pm Instructional Time 
■ 12pm-1pm Lunch 
■ 1pm-2pm Planning 
■ 2:00-3pm One on one sessions to follow-up, 

group/individual support as needed -RETEACH 
■ 3pm-4pm Parent Meetings 

○ Sixth Grade 
■ 8:30-9:30 ELA 
■ 9:45-10:45 Math 
■ 11:00-12pm SS/Science 

○ Seventh Grade 
■ 8:30-9:30 Math 
■ 9:45-10:45 SS/Science 
■ 11:00-12pm ELA 

○ Eighth Grade 
■ 8:30-9:30 SS/Science 
■ 9:45-10:45 ELA 
■ 11:00-12pm Math 

○ Total: 6 teachers across K-8 to be instructing for virtual only. This 
would be to best serve theschool community and cater to those 
students who have underlying conditions and are unableto return 
in-person. Documentation would need to be submitted to ensure 
that the spots go to those that need it. 

○ There would only be 100% in-person or 100% remote offered, no blended 
learning. 

○ Reviewed in January 2022 based on COVID rates, vaccine for under 12 year 
olds. 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown (No Report as there was no meeting in July) 

 Next meeting scheduled for September 15, 2021 @ 6:30 p.m. 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

Maintenance/Facility and new Construction:  
 We are awaiting a few required items to complete the process with M & T Bank. 
 AG Approval 
 Five architectural concerns. 
 Even though we have five architectural concerns the DOB Deputy commissioner gave 

us a temporary waiver and approved our structural plans on August 12 so that we can 
began and complete foundation work before winter. The next step was for me to serve 
public notices to eight surrounding neighbors in person or by registered mail, I 
completed this task on August 16th. Following the completion, we are required to wait 
ten workdays and the DOB will issue a work permit to begin construction.  Hence, we 
are planning a groundbreaking ceremony on September 2nd.  (Board members please 
plan to be in attendance if possible.) Actual construction should begin within a week. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday August 23, 2021 at 6:30 
 I have been working with Ms. Leslie and Ms. Muniz to construct four temporary 

classrooms on the gym floor using glass and metal to give a better sound buffer. 
 I will be commencing training this week and next week with M & T bank technical team 

on the navigation of their construction management portal, Beginning September the 8th 

I am enrolled in the DOB’s required training for their online construction management 
portal. 

 I am submitting two names for consideration for REACS board membership, Mr. David 
Barron a licensed architect and Mr. Mitchell L. Walker, Deputy Director for 
Administration for Children. 

 The Pastor of the Rescue Church where the Pre-K is being held (Pastor Wilks) passed 
away today. 

VI. Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin (No Report as there was no meeting in July) 

VII. Academic Accountability Report
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met on 8/19/21 @ 6:00 p.m. via Zoom. The following discussions were held: 
Prep for onsite learning 
Tracking for student needs 
Enrichment 
Continuous improvement on foreign language 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report 
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford via Mrs. Sylvia Fariclough-Leslie 
2021 Staffing Plan 

● New hires for 2021-2022 regular school year 
○ B, Elementary teacher 
○ Mr. Joel Bunche, Middle School PE teacher 
○ Ms. Nikki Smith, Special Education teacher 
○ Ms. Daniella Ruvinsky, Special Education teacher 
○ Update needed from Board as far as Parent Coordinator 

● Interviews continue to fill vacancies 
● Received phone calls from two local principals regarding staff members 

(Brady, Suberi, Jackson) who arelooking to leave REACS for the Fall. 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session: 
The board discussed an administrative issue and procedure going forward for said issue; the 
board voted and passed the updated administrative package that will be uploaded to the DOE 
for charter renewal (R. Wilson made the motion, M. Anglin seconded). 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday September 27, 2021 @ 6:30 pm 
Location 
In-Person at Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School and online via Zoom Online Meeting 
Platform 

Directors Present 
L. Hamer (remote), C. Will iams (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), M. 
Anglin (remote), S. Brown (remote), L. Stephens (remote), J. Hurt (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Julie Padilla (remote), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote), Dr. 
Claytisha Walden (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on September 27, 2021 at 6:35 PM 
M. Anglin a motion to Approve Agenda.

  R. Wilson seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

C. Approve Minutes 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Minutes from Augus t  23 ,  2021 .  
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 34 
• K-7 STUDENTS – 441 
• SPED STUDENTS – 62 
• ELL – 10 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022 

A total of 553 applications are on our waitlist. 
9 seats to fill
 2-K seats
 1- 1ST Grade
 2-2nd

 1-4th grade
 2-7th grade
 1-8th grade 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

Working on Audit selections from auditors 
Preparing documents for ARP-2 Grant 
Preparing reports for the NYC Authorizer Accountability Compliance (Due 
10/1)  
Financial Summary-sent to the board 
Cash Disbursement-sent to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla 

Dr. Claytisha Walden 
Renewal Planning
● General Information: 
DOE generates recommendations for renewal short-term or long-term (not a candidate for non-
renew, 
good). Goes onto Board of Regents agenda meeting. February, March or April meeting next 
year. 
○ EQ 1: Trend comparison to CSD, 2019 data 
○ EQ 2: Organization and operations, do we see systems and structures are in place to make 
sure 
the school is using that data (From admin, to teachers, to the students- how does data get 
used?) 
○ Enrollment and retention of special populations 
○ Financial liability long term and short term (any flags) 
○ Board: How often do they meet, quorum, their involvement/knowledge, how they make 
decisions/allocate. 
● Important Dates: 
○ By September 1: Submit renewal application via Charter Information Portal (ChIP). 
○ By September 1: Submit master schedules for in person as well as any virtual synchronous 
learning (as applicable based on updated guidance from the state, your re-opening plan) via 
Charter Information Portal (ChIP).. 
○ By September 15: Disseminate Renewal Notification in person and/or virtually, in
accordance with your re-opening plan:
○ You will be able to access your school’s letter(s) on the Renewal Resources page the within 
the 
next few weeks. 
○ The letters will be prepared in English, Spanish, and French. If you need the letter to be 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

translated in another language, you will need to coordinate translation services. 
○ Pre Call Before Visit w/Laurie and Leadership Team 
○ October/November/December Visit: To begin- Leadership Team Meetings (SEO members 
will also be there). Then same day or next day Classroom Observations (virtual or in person) 
○ Public Hearings: TBD on virtual/in-person, will reach out in September to coordinate 
○ Board of Regents Decision - March/April/May
2021-2022 School Year Planning
● First Day of in-person instruction - September 13th 
○ Assessment dates 
■ Beginning of Year (BOY) Administered September -October 2021. Determine 
individual achievement gaps and intervention plan. 
■ Start Afterschool and Saturday School week of October 4th based on the BOY 
REACS Math instructional FOCUS 
● Building a Safe Math Community 
● Implementing the REACS Math Framework (Eureka) 
○ Focused Practices (lesson plan template attached) 
■ Fluency Routines 
■ The 5 Mathematical Practices for Orchestrating Discussion 
■ The 3-Read Protocol or Notice and Wonder 
■ Exit Tickets to inform Instruction 
● Develop & Deepen Students’ Conceptual Understanding (currently REACS students can 
visually 
display their understandings through the use of multiple strategies) 
○ Teachers as Mathematicians 
■ Unpacking NGLS Standards 
■ Learning Math Conceptual Understandings + Coherence 
○ Students verbally articulating math conceptual understandings 
■ Math Language Stems 
REACS Literacy Focus
● Integration of lessons with New Generation Learning Standards 
● Continued development of our co-teaching model and supporting practices. With recent 
changes to our 
learning environments, students now, more than ever, require models of collaboration and 
inquiry. As 
we seek to strengthen our co-teaching by facilitating a robust conceptualization of its theories 
and 
applications, we'll find that: 
1. Many of the stressors brought on by current environmental demands are alleviated 
2. The quality, frequency, and endurance of student engagement will increase 
3. Students will begin to approach topics with an inquiry focus in which they are searching for a 
deeper understanding and connections 
4. Students' discussions will naturally become inclusive of extended (higher-level DOK) thinking. 
DATA Focused Instruction 
● ELA - Core Action 3A: The teacher poses questions and tasks for students to do the majority 
of the 
work: speaking/listening, reading, and/or writing. Students do the majority of the work of the 
lesson. 
● Math -Core Action 1.C: The enacted lesson intentionally targets the aspect(s) of Rigor 
(conceptual 
understanding, procedural skill and fluency, application) called for by the standard(s) being 
addressed. 
Wednesday Schedule
● Wednesdays are scheduled so that scholars will have core instruction, reteach time for critical 
standards, enrichment classes, iReady and independent reading. Additionally, teachers 
participate in 
Professional Learning Communities. Enrichment classes for scholars are being finalized. We are 
working residences for music, dance, photography, karate and chorus. 
Parent Partnership Focus
● Sessions for Parents/Families on the following topics: 
○ Communication 101 
○ Vision for Co-Teaching: Motivation, Advocacy, Parenting, and Partnering 
○ Relational Trust and COmmunication 
○ Goal Setting and Reflection 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Motivation 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Advocacy and Parenting 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Early Literacy 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Elementary Literacy 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: MS Literacy 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Early Math 
○ Co-Teaching from Home: Elementary Math 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

○ Co-Teaching from Home: MS Math 
COVID-19 Impact & Class Closure
● We had to close 2 classes based on positive cases among scholars. Classes were shifted to 
virtual 
learning. We had one staff member who tested positive. She was not in school for several days 
before 
being diagnosed so it didn’t trigger any closer. 
● We distributed devices to scholars. Devices were updated with Go Guardian to monitor online 
activity. 
○ Devices came back with lots of damage from scholars. We had to order additional devices. 
529 College Savings Plan 
● Scholars saving account towards college. 
Professional Development
● Protocols for Professional Learning Communities 
● Grade Team Planning session based on data reports 
Proposal for Academic/Personnel Committee to meet every other month starting in
October. Monthly
Reports will continue with pertinent details.
Dates for 6:30 PM 
Oct 19, 2021 iReady Summary
Dec 14, 2021 ANET Summary
Feb 15, 2021 Promotion In Doubt 
Apr 12, 2021 Mid Year Assessment Summary
Jun 14, 2021 Graduation Details 
Jul 19, 2021 2020-21 School Year Data Review 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening executive board, parents, guardians, caregivers, school leaders, and staff. The 
PTO held our first meeting on Wednesday, September 15th and we had a great turnout of about 
75. I think the PTO year is off to a great start. 
At the beginning of our inaugural 2021-22 meeting, we had a moment of silence for friend and 
PTO 2nd VP Jenyse Tanksley whose untimely passing has saddened us all. We gave away face 
masks as our school opening scholar giveaway to two (2) scholars. We informed parents that 
the PTO assembled a “welcome packet” for parents, which included our goals for this year, a 
detailed calendar, and instructions for the popcorn fundraiser with brochure. Our popcorn 
fundraiser will be both virtual and by brochure order this year, with brochure orders starting 
today and ending on November 29th; the 4-day virtual events will begin weekly on October 4th 
and end the week of December 21st. New to the welcome packet this year are PTO business 
cards with our contact information and a QR code for our Cash App. Now dues (which is $25 per 
family), donations and fundraiser monies can be directly sent to the PTO bank account; and we 
eliminate the need for us picking up checks, etc. from the school’s office, which keeps everyone 
safer. We are utilizing technology more and the school has agreed to post our meeting minutes, 
by laws and other pertinent PTO info under our tab on the school’s website. 
In August, the PTO provided the school with twelve (12) $5 Arch cards from McDonald’s as a 
summer program incentive. After purchasing the cards, the PTO beginning school year balance 
is $3,526.07. And as usual, our school leaders gave important updates and answered the 
questions/concerns of parents (see questions below). The PTO asked parents for patience and 
kindness as we get settled into the routine of our new normal. Our village must work together to 
be successful. We look forward to an exciting and successful year. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

V. CEO Report
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

• In a hold position with the construction with new building. Meeting tonight at 
7:15 pm with architect and insurance company. The bank we currently have 
don’t want to use the current contractor in place. The amount that the current 
contractor is bonded at isn’t enough for the bank. If we can’t bond the current 
contractor, there is a list of contractors the bank has that we can use which will 
raise the cost of the building; the other option is to go back to Northfield Bank 
and go through another vote and approval process. Once we have a bonded 
contractor, we can break ground. 

VI. Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin 

• Finance committee met Wednesday, September 22nd via zoom. Topics 
discussed were: 
- Teacher attraction/retention Sign on/Retention bonuses, and full salary 

description in contracts. 

VII. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met on September 23rd and the 25th via zoom; topics discussed were: 
- Facility needs and repairs 
- Mask protocols 
- Testing schedules 
- Data timelines and goals 
- Vaccine mandates 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

No meeting will meet next month, date TBD 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:25 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session vaccine mandates were discussed. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday October 25, 2021 @ 6:30 pm 
Location 
via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (remote), R. Wilson (remote), M. Anglin (remote), S. Brown 
(remote), L. Stephens (remote), K. Sandiford (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Claytisha Walden (remote), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

 Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on October 25, 2021, at 6:34 PM 
C. Williams made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
R. Wilson seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

C. Approve Minutes 
R.  Wilson made a motion to Approve Minutes from September  27 ,  2021 .  
M. Anglin seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

 Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 
• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 443 
• SPED STUDENTS – 62 
• ELL – 10 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022 
A total of 553 applications are on our waitlist. 
8 seats to fill
 2-K seats
 1-2nd grade
 1-4th grade
 2-7th grade
 1-8th grade 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 
Audit and Call completed. 
Preparing reports for the NYC Authorizer Accountability Conference due 11/1. 
Financial and Cash disbursement reports were sent to the board. 

 School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Claytisha Walden 

General Information: 
DOE generates recommendations for renewal short-term or long-term (not a candidate 
for non-renew, good). Goes onto Board of Regents agenda meeting. February, March or 
April meeting next year. 

 EQ 1: Trend comparison to CSD, 2019 data 
 EQ 2: Organization and operations, do we see systems and structures are in place 

to make sure the school is using that data (From admin, to teachers, to the 
students- how does data get used?) 

 Enrollment and retention of special populations 
 Financial liability long term and short term (any flags) 
 Board: How often do they meet, quorum, their involvement/knowledge, how they 

make decisions/allocate.
    Important Dates: 

 The Community Notification letters of REACS Renewal were sent to families. 
 Pre-Call Before Visit w/Laurie occurred Thursday, Oct 21, 2021 to confirm the

schedule for next week’s visit. 
 October/November/December Visit: To begin- Leadership Team Meetings (SEO 

members will also be there). Then same day or next day Classroom Observations 
(virtual or in person) 

 Public Hearings: TBD on virtual/in-person, will reach out in September to 
coordinate 

 Board of Regents Decision - March/April/May

   2021-2022 School Year Update 
 COVID-19 Impact 
 One Positive Covid case, a scholar tested positive. She was not in school for 

several days before being diagnosed so it didn’t trigger any closer. 
 We are still working on minimizing the sound levels in the Middle School classes in 

the gym. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

Discipline 
 Developing a PBIS system to reward scholars’ leadership 
 Demerit System for scholars who require redirection 
 2 seventh graders were suspended for fighting in class 

Assessment 
 Summer Data 
 Chart of Scholars I-Ready results comparing EOY 21 to BOY 21 (Attached) 
 Beginning of Year iREADY (BOY) Administered September (Attached) 
 Initial Data was used to Determine individual achievement gaps and intervention plan. 
 ANET schedule changed 
 ELL Scholars were assessed using NYSITELL 
 Intervention Plan 
 Start Afterschool and Saturday School started the week of October 11th 
 Focused Instructional Groupings 
 Interventionist working with identified scholars during the day 

Enrichment Activities 
 Wednesdays during the school day 
 Young Peoples Chorus of NYC for scholars Grades 2-8 will begin 10/27 
 Chess TBA 
 LEAP - Arts Enrichment will begin 11/3 
 After School Mondays 
 Pretty Brown Girls will begin 11/1 
 Financial Literacy will begin 11/1 

2021 Staffing 
 Pending REACS COVID Vaccine Mandates we continue to face a continued 

substitute shortage has a huge impact on our schools 
 Teacher vacancy 
 TA vacancy - Filed pending clearance 
 School Aide vacancy 

We continue to adjust daily to provide coverages. We are now adjusting to compensate teachers 
for missing their preps. 

 PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening executive board, parents, guardians, caregivers, school leaders, and staff. The 
PTO held our October meeting on Wednesday, October 25th and we had about 23 people in 
attendance. 
At the beginning of our meeting, we informed everyone that we still have maroon face masks for 
sale; 1 for $6 or 2 for $10. We also asked everyone to encourage their scholars to be 
responsible in the handling of their devices. 
The big focus of the meeting was on our current Popcorn Fundraiser. Brochure orders are still 
on going and will end on November 29th. Our first 4-day virtual popcorn event from October 4th 
through October 7th was a huge success, with sales totaling $4,989; meaning we made a profit 
of $2,494. We congratulated our three (3) 3 scholars who sold over $1,000 each (Jahane, 
Navaeh and Averi). Gift cards will be given to each scholar who sells over $1,000 during any of 
the 4-day virtual events; and if that doesn’t apply then the two (2) highest sellers of that virtual 
event will receive gift cards. We want to incentivize our scholars/families to sell. Not to mention, 
at the December PTO meeting the three (3) highest brochure sellers plus the teachers or the 
highest selling class will be announced and receive gift cards as well. The next virtual event 
dates are November 9th through November 11th; and we will open one more in December 
(TBA) for everyone who prefers that method of ordering. Our first bulk brochure order will be 
soon so the final day to get the order forms completed will be October 25th and hopefully we will 
have the delivery in before Thanksgiving. We continue to ask that no monies be sent to school 
with scholars because we are utilizing Cash App to keep everyone a little safer. With the 
success of our fundraiser so far, our PTO bank balance is currently $5,529.04(Cash Statement 
attached below). 
As always, our School Leaders addressed some concerns of parents (list attached below). 
Parents were told that scholar P-EBT funds should be loaded towards the end of November, 
however, REACS has no control over when it will be available. Families were asked to speak 
with their scholars about proper behavior on the buses and following the rules. They addressed 
the questions regarding the staffing changes; parents were informed that due to the vaccine 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes 

mandate staff altering had to occur and the parents of those particular classes with changes 
were notified. 
To end the meeting, we asked everyone to stay tuned as we come up with possible ways to give 
back to our REACS community for the holidays and gave a synopsis of the events to come in 
the next 30 days(Character Day, Asynchronous Day, Veteran’s Day, Report Cards and PTC), as 
well as informed every one of the Mobile Vaccination Van that will be in the school parking lot 
this week from 10am to 6pm with the Pfizer Vaccine. 

 CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

Maintenance/Facility and new Construction:  
We are still awaiting AG approval to move forward with M & T Bank. 

I have visited four job sights of prospective contractors and requested bids from in the event we 
are unable to use our original contractor due to the requirements of M & T Bank.   I have 
received two bids thus far which are two and three million above our budget.  The most 
competitive and bid is one pending from Acisco Construction who is trying to adapt their bid to 
our 6.5 million budget. 

Acisco have built to facilities for Success Academy one of which I visited last week. 

I am working to get DOB approved material to reduce the noise level of the four temporary 
classroom on the gym floor. Because of the supply limits due to COVID it has been difficult 
acquiring the amount of material need. 

I submitted two names for consideration for REACS board membership, Mr. David Barron a 
licensed architect and Mr. Mitchell L. Walker, Deputy Director for NYC Administration for 
Children I would like to know the disposition of these candidates. 

There will be a mobile vaccination unit in the parking lot this week administering the Pfizer 
vaccine to eligible candidates. I am in negotiations to have on site vaccination when FDA 
approval is granted for kids under twelve. 

Governor Hochul restored a Homeland Security Grant in the amount of $40,600. 

 Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin

• No meeting for the month of October; next meeting is scheduled for 
November (bi-monthly). 

 Academic Accountability Report
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met via Zoom on 10/19/21 @ 6:30 pm. 
• Highlights from the meeting: The renewal process and board interviews for 

the school. 
• Discussed data analysis of reading and math. 
• Need analysis for entire school. 
• Discussed instructional focus to close gaps. 
• Curriculum review is under discussion. 
• Scholar incentives. 

 Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

• Met 10/19/21 via Zoom online platform. 
• Current staff covering vacancies due to the COVID mandates. 
• Spanish teacher vacancy (today). 
• Looking to meet all current vacancies. 
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Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:14 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session the charter renewal processed was discussed with Nora Clancy. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday November 22, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), J. Hurt 
(remote), M. Anglin (remote), S. Brown (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), C. Walden (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on November 22, 2021 at 6:32 PM 
K. Sandiford made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 



 

  
     
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

   
  
   
   
  

 
 

   
  

               
  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
    
 

  
     

  
  

   
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
    

 
  
    
   

 
  

 
   
   

C. Approve Minutes 
R.  Wilson made a motion to Approve Minutes from October  25 ,  2021 .  
M. Anglin seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. S. Fairclough-Leslie 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 443 
• SPED STUDENTS – 62 
• ELL – 10 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STUDENTS – 65% 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022

      A total of 553 applications are on our waitlist.
      8 seats to fill 

• 2-K seats 
• 1-2 grade 
• 1-4th grade 
• 2-7th grade 
• 1 8th grade 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Financial Summary/Budget vs. Actual/Cash Disbursement reports given to the board. 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Claytisha Walden 

• Renewal Planning 
• The School Visit for our Charter Renewal took place during the week of October 25th. 

There were leadership team meetings, Special Education Team meeting, Class 
observations and Staff Interviews. 

• The following areas were identified as strength of REACS; 
• Management 
• School Culture 
• Increase in ELLs was noted 
• Student exemplary work posted as anchors 
• Students were engaged in their work 
• There was urgency and commitment from the staff 

• The following 2 areas were identified for continued growth: 
• Ensuring that we are repeating the identified schoolwide priorities 
• Strengthening of review and feedback cycle on lesson planning to ensure alignment to 

the standards and tasks are rigorous. 

Next Steps 
• Review of School Discipline Policy 
• Public Hearings: December 6, 2021, at 5:30PM via zoom. 



 

   
  

 
                       

  
   

  
    

    
  

 
 

   
  
   
   
    
  
   
   
    

     
   
           

    
 

 
  
    
  
    
   

 
 

    
    
  
  

 
 
 

 
     

   
  

  
     
   

 
    

 
 

     
  

• Recommendation to Board of Regents for a specific term of Renewal 
• Board of Regents Decision – anticipated March/April/May

       Continued COVID-19 Impact at REACS 
• 6 Positive Covid cases with specific groups identified as close contact and instructed to 

quarantine. 
• No full class closures 
• REACS was selected to host a POP-Up vaccine clinic for scholars 5-11 years old on 

Friday, November 19, 2021.  Numerous parents/guardians came in to have their 
scholar vaccinated. 

ELA Data 
•    4th grade is nailing RL.4.2. 
•    Grades did fairly decent across all grades. 
•    5th-grade stood out and performed above the network. 
•    Informational text -- we surpassed the network. 
•    A lot of celebrations are in our upper-school grades: 5th, 6th and 8th grades. 
•    The kids are excited to be back in school. 
•    The move back over to the main building went well. 
•    We want to utilize the team approach to teaching. 
• The level of accountability and feedback they are receiving → a lot of praise    and 

constant observations. The other piece of it is content: they have to deliver it differently. 
•    The middle school schedule is tight and you have to keep moving. 
•    The learning environment is changed → it’s nurturing, collaborative, and kids  can 
actually talk. There’s a lot of checking for understanding. 

Math Data 
•    Highly structured, focused, and organized. 
•    They spend the majority of their time teaching and focusing on the work. 
•    Teachers deliver on-the-spot feedback and change their practice. 
•    3rd-grade did well. I expected them to do better. 
•    Ensuring feedback is implemented.

           DATA Actions Taken 
• Reteach Structure in place on Wednesdays to target specific standards identified 
• Added more scholars to afterschool based on additional data to offer more support 
• Specific attention to Grouping for instruction and Intervention in lesson plans 
• Re-aligned coaching structure to support teaching and learning based on data trends 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening, executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents, and guardians. Our 
November PTO meeting on Wednesday, November 17th via Zoom, and was attended by 
about 29 participants. Our meeting was led by our 1st VP Ms. Holmes. As usual, our 
School Leaders addressed some questions and concerns of the parents which I attached 
to my report. (Parent Questions/Concerns List is attached below). Our Assistant Principal, 
Dr. Clay, gave an informative presentation on NYC RISE College Savings Program. 

The PTO kept in theme with our giveaways. We gave one (1) scholar in 601 a face mask 
and one (1) family (the Menard family) a turkey for the upcoming holidays. We also had a 
winner of the virtual popcorn event which took place November 9th through November 
12th, Kori Shannon, who sold $596 worth of popcorn. She has already received her $20 
Amazon gift card. 



 

 
 

    
      

    
  

 
 

   
   

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
   

 

  
 

   
    

   
  

   
 

  
 

    
   

 
   

  
    

   
 

   
    

  
   

As for old business, our mask fundraiser is still ongoing. Our Treasurer gave the update on 
our popcorn fundraiser. As of the meeting we have sold $8,735.00 worth of popcorn, which 
means we have made a profit of $4,367.50. The current PTO bank balance is $6,095.68 
pending a Direct Deposit from Double Good in the amount of $964.00. (Please see Cash 
Flow Statement below) We reminded families to encourage scholars to handle all devices 
with care. 

As for new business, we informed every one of the two (2) vacant positions on the PTO 
Executive Board (2nd VP and Communications Secretary); giving the date of Friday, 
December 3rd as the last date to inform us if they want to be put on the ballot. The PTO 
also gave school administration five (5) sealed cards containing $50 visa gift cards in each 
for five (5) REACS families, which will be handpicked by REACS counselors. We love 
being able to give back and be a blessing to our school community. 

V. CEO Report
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

Maintenance/Facility and new Construction: 

• We received AG approval (10-27-21) to move forward with M & T Bank. 
• As of today, I have visited the job sights of seven prospective contractors and requested 

and received bids from four of them in the seemingly likely event that we will be unable to 
use our original contractor due to the performance bonding requirements of M&T Bank. I 
have received all four bids thus far and all are two to three million above our budget.  The 
most competitive thus far are Acisco Construction at 8.7 million and CMB Construction 
Partners, LLC at 10.1 million. (See the attached options to be discussed in Executive 
session) 

• Attorney Lamont Bailey distributed a formal bid invitation without any response to date. 
• The four temporary classrooms that was constructed on the gym floor and proved to be 

too noisy was successfully relocated to the multipurpose hall in the main building reducing 
the noise level by at least 70% and eliminating the need for the sound proofing that was 
quoted at $10,000 

• I submitted two names for consideration to REACS’ board, Mr. David Barron a licensed 
architect and Mr. Mitchell L. Walker, Deputy Director for NYC Administration for Children 
both have contacted me concerning their status. 

• Through the efforts of Ms. Leslie and myself we were able to secure onsite 
vaccinations for our scholars, unfortunately turnout was disappointingly low. 

• Governor Hochul restored the Homeland Security Grant in the amount of  40,600 
and is having her staff look into Malcomb Smith grant ($500,000) that we never 
received. 

http:6,095.68
http:4,367.50
http:8,735.00


     
 

 

 

   
 
 

 
  

 
   
   

 
 

 
   

 
       

 
   
  

  
  

 
   
      

 
   

 
    

 
 

 
    

   
    

 
 

 
 
 

   
   

      
   

  
 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday November 22, 2021 

VI. Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin (No Meeting) 

VII. Academic Accountability Report
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met on 11/18 @ 6:30 pm via Zoom online platform. 
• Addressed areas of concern on DOE visit 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

2021 Staffing 

• Met 11/18 via Zoom online platform 
• Extended two offers to fill the vacancies in Spanish and 6th Grade Math 

Teacher.  
• TA and one school aide vacancies were filled. 
• We continue to adjust to challenging daily coverages. Teachers are missing 

preps. 
• Discussed finding certified staff for vacancies. 
• 3 Staff members are out on leave. (Assistant Principal, Dr. Padilla and TA, 

Ms. Jack-Hermitt has indicated they are returning) 
• There are a number of staff members who must take the second dose of the 

vaccine by 11/29. 
• 1 staff member got hurt at school and is on leave. 

Adjourn Meeting 
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:12 PM; next board meeting will be 
held December 20, 2021 at 6:30 pm. The meeting was ajourned for executive session. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

In executive session, building plans for the new REACS school building were discussed. M. 
Anglin made a motion to put up $1.5 mil in reserve funds to move forward with the building of the 
school. With that money put up, rent will be frozen indefinitely as long as the school is not 
financially strong during construction (10 years). R. Wilson seconded the motion. 



    

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 
 

       
     

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

    
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

    
 

   
  

 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday December 20, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), L. 
Stephens (remote), S. Brown (remote), J. Hurt (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Julie Padilla (remote), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), J. Padilla (remote), T. Muniz 
(remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
C.Williams called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on December 20, 2021 at 6:31 PM 
C. Rice made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
K. Sandiford seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

1 of 6 



  

 

 

 

 
 
 

  
      

  
 

 

   
 

 
 

   
  
   
   
  

 
 

   
 

                
  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
   
     

 
  
 

  
   

  
  
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

           
 

 
 

 
     

   
    

   
   

   
  

  
    

  
 

 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting 

C. Approve Minutes 
D. C. Rice made a motion to Approve Minutes from November 22 , 2021 . 

K. Sandiford seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 437 
• SPED STUDENTS – 62 
• ELL – 10 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STUDENTS – 66% 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022

      A total of 262 applications are on our waitlist.
      13 seats to fill 

• 4-K seats 
• 3-2 grade 
• 1-4th grade 
• 1 6th grade 
• 3-7th grade 
• 1-8th grade 

Opened application process for next school year today. 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Budget and cash disbursement reports were given to the board 
• Budget has been lowered to reflect lower student population (lowered by 

$168,000) 
• In good fiscal standing 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Claytisha Walden/ 

Dr. Julie Padilla 
•    Completed charter renewal final step with public hearing 
•    Awaiting board of regents decision (March – May 2022 timeframe) 
•    Update on COVID-19 issues 
•    Teacher development/evaluations is ongoing 
•    Assisting 8 grade student applications 
•    Shared assessment timeline windows 
•    Began reading initiatives 
•    Enrichment and scholar celebration programs are ongoing 
•    After school enrichment has begun 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening, executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents and guardians. 
Our December PTO meeting on Wednesday, December 15th via Zoom, and 
was attended by about 37 participants. As usual, our School Leaders 
addressed some questions and concerns of the parents which I attached to my 
report. (Parent Questions/Concerns List is attached below). 
Being that it’s December, the PTO had quite a few giveaways. We gave 
twenty-three (23) of our scholar’s gift cards; we had five (5) family giveaways 
which included $50 gift cards, a gift basket and a turkey; and two (2) staff 
giveaways. Our highest seller of the brochure part of the popcorn fundraiser 
and winner of a $20 Amazon gift card was Mason Seabourne in 201. Being 
that there will be just one more virtual event, the overall three (3) highest 
sellers and teachers of the highest selling class will be announced at the 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting 
January meeting. 
As for old business, our mask fundraiser is still ongoing. Our Treasurer gave 
the update on our popcorn fundraiser. As of the meeting we had sold 
$9,469.00 worth of popcorn, which means we have made a profit of $4,734.50. 
The current PTO bank balance is $7,133.50. (Please see Cash Flow 
Statement below) We continue to remind families to encourage scholars to 
handle all devices with care. 
As for new business, we had our elections. Our new 2nd VP is Shakima 
Greene-Tucker, and the new Communications Secretary is Naomi DeVore. We 
believe both ladies will be a great asset to the team, especially with their 
backgrounds in student leadership and the DOE. The PTO announced that we 
are giving a $50 gift card to the Tanksley-Toussaint family as an act of our love 
for our former 2nd VP Ms. Jenyse Tanksley who unfortunately passed away 
earlier this school year. It was our pleasure to be able to give back and be a 
blessing to our school community for the holidays. 
Wishing everyone a safe and enjoyable holiday season. We are looking 
forward to what is to come in 2022. 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

• Part of primary transition team for Mayor-elect Eric Adams 
• Walkway connecting middle school gym and main building is completed 
• Spoke about restoration of grant to Gov. Kathy Hochul 
• Meeting tomorrow with our lawyers and the lawyers from the bank on  
contrcuction project 

VI. Finance Report
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin – NO MEETING 

VII. Academic Accountability Report
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met 12/14/21 at 6 p.m. 
• Admin covered areas discussed in meeting 
• Committee is working with administration to provide the best experience for 

scholars 
• Looking for suggestions on improving curriculum from staff 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

• Met 12/6/21 
• Discussed vacancies 
• Discussed new positions 
• 8th grade teacher resignation 
• New hire for 6th grade 
• 4 h grade resignation 
• Looking for Middle School Dean 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:02 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

3 of 6  
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session: 
A decision was made after Christmas break to transition to remote learning January 3-7, 2022. 
In-Person learning will return January 10, 2022 (C. Williams made the motion, J. Hurt 
seconded); two potential board member interviews were conducted. K. Sandiford made a motion 
to accept David Barron and Mitchell Walker as new board members, C. Williams seconded. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday January 24, 2022, at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
L. Hamer (remote), C. Williams (remote), M. Anglin (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. 
Sandiford (remote), L. Stephens (remote), S. Brown (remote), J. Hurt (remote), D. Barron 
(remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), Dr. Julie Padilla (remote), C. Walden (remote), 
Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on January 24, 2022, at 6:36 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
M. Anglin seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

1 of 6 



   

  

  
   

  

    

 

 
   

  
 

  
 

 
   

 
  

 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday January 24, 2022, at 6:30 

C. Approve Minutes 
D. C. Williams made a motion to Approve Minutes from December  20 ,  2021 .  

R. Wilson seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 431 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STIDENTS – 66% 

ENROLLMENT: 2021 - 2022 

• Waitlist Total: 255 
• 19 seats to be filled 

◦ K-6 
◦ 2nd-3 
◦ 3rd-2 
◦ 4th-2 
◦ 6th-1 
◦ 7th-3 
◦ 8th-2 

2022-2023 Applications: 

• As of 1/21/22 a total of 197 have been received 
• Lottery applications are due on April 1, 2022 
• Lottery will be held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 

COVID-19 Testing: 

• As of 1/18/22 weekly testing for staff is on Tuesdays and Student testing is on Fridays. 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Accountability reporting due 1/31/22 
• Financial and Cash disbursement reports were given to the board 

III. School Leader Report
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla 

Dr. Claytisha Walden 

Renewal Next Steps 
• Recommendation to Board of Regents for a specific term of Renewal. Based Public 

Hearing notice the Action Type: Renewal - Full-Term Renewal 
• Board of Regents Decision – anticipated March/April/May 

School COVID Update
• To be proactive, during this holiday season, we were fully remote January 3rd 

through January 17th, 2022. 
• COVID testing (from NYC DOE) starting on 1/21/21. It will be random for 

20 % of scholars. As of 1/20/21, there are only 143 scholars where parents 
consented. They tested 88 scholars. 

• As of 1/20/21 we also have a total of 155 scholars who are vaccinated. 
• 20 staff members were randomly tested on 1/18. 
• One new COVID positive in the school community. No closures because we 

were remote the previous week. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday January 24, 2022, at 6:30 

Teacher Development & Support
• Teachers have received at least one Informal Observation Feedback from the 

Assistant Principals. Informal Observations consist of unannounced 20 - 30 minute 
observations where teachers receive feedback based on their executed lesson plan. 
Teachers receive commendations based on the strengths and effectiveness of the 
lesson and recommendations to improve pedagogy. The lesson elements that are 
noted are: 

• Lesson activities aligned to the measurable, standards-based learning target 
• Level of student engagement and interaction - collaborative student groups, 
turn and talks, think-write-pair-share 

• Instructional Math Framework - Fluency Sprints, Problem of the Day, Teach, 
Guided Practice, Exit tickets 
• Teachers were introduced to a teacher and student rubric which 

unpacked analyzing word problems for: reasoning and proof, connection, 
representation, problem solving, and communication 
• Teachers were introduced to the scale- Novice, Apprentice, Practitioner, Expert 

similar to our current scoring scale of 0, 1, 2, and 3. 
• The goal is to provide teachers with insight on the various ways students can 

communicate math when problem solving, norming expectations and adjusting 
teaching to allow students the opportunity to show their mathematical thinking 
using all they know and not just what is currently being taught. 
• Annotation strategies 
• Use of data decision-making 
• Formal Observations are finishing up as they took place between 12/13/21 -

1/28/22 
High School Admission for 8th Graders

•The high school application for students entering high school in fall 2022 will 
open in late January. Families and school staff will be notified when the 
application opens. 
•The deadline for families to submit their high school application will be in early 
March (the week of February 28, 2022). 

Assessment Timeline 
•ESL- Scholars were recently assessed and are now being serviced by the 
interventionists. 
• i-Ready- Scholars were recently assessed for the Middle of the Year diagnosis. 
The assessment window is still open to accommodate those scholars that were 
remote/absent. 
• ANET A2 will occur in late January. 
• Grades 3-8 will take a MOCK ELA and Math Assessment this week. 
• MIDDLE OF THE YEAR ACADEMIC ANALYSIS attached showcasing the 

various data trends for i-ready and progress reports by class. 
Reading Initiatives 

• Implementing a REACS Reading Challenge in February/ in conjunction with 
Read Across America Day, March 2, 2022. Scholars will continue reading logs, 
which will be reviewed monthly, and prizes will be awarded based total minutes 
read, most books read (by class and by grade). 
•Reading buddies will be facilitated between the Middle School grades and 
Elementary School grades (this will occur on Wednesdays during independent 
reading time). 

PBIS Leadership Incentives
•Continuing to be developed by the leadership team as well as the Leader in Me 
team. Surveying scholars to find incentives that are appropriate and relevant to 
them. 

Enrichment Scholar Activities 
• Mondays - My Brother’s Keeper - Male initiative being finalized. 
• Wednesdays (1:00 - 3:00pm) - Chorus, Chess, Music Percussion, Visual Arts, 

REACS News, Music Production. Scholars auditioned for Chorus while other 
activities were assigned to specific classes. 
• Added Karate and Music for Pre-K 

Smile Mobile Dentists 
• January 20 - 28, 2022 182 scholars were signed up to see the dentist. 

Black History Month
•REACS will be having a Black History Month Celebration kick-off. The theme is 
“I am Black History.” Further details include that 1 student from Pre-K, 
Elementary and Middle School will share a 3-to-4-minute speech, dance, poem 
etc. letting us know what Black History means to them. Additionally, prior to the 
Mid-Winter break there will be a Black History Showcase- the purpose will be to 
highlight Black excellence from the past all the way up to the present. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday January 24, 2022, at 6:30 

Personnel Report
• It has been a challenge to fill vacancies. 
•Current vacancies 8th Grade Math, 7th Grade ELA, Interventionist. 
•New teacher hired to fill MS Social Studies role. 
•New teacher hired to fill Kindergarten. 
•TA who declined the vaccine continues to be on leave. 
•Third Grade Teacher on Maternity sent a notice that she will continue to be on 
leave through May. 
• Dean of Culture Request - Awaiting Board Decision 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening Executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents and guardians. 
Our January PTO meeting on Wednesday, January 19th via Zoom, attended by 
about 44 participants, and was led by our 1st VP, Ms. Holmes. As usual, our 
School Leaders addressed the questions and concerns of some parents which I 
attached to my report. Many of the questions surrounded Covid and they 
explained how scholars, whose parents consented, and staff will be tested on a 
weekly basis. School leaders also informed parents that if a scholar is exposed 
or tests positive, they can contact the teacher and access assignments via 
Google classroom. (Parent Questions/Concerns List is attached below). 
We started off the first meeting of the 2022 with a scholar mask giveaway and 
later had another mask giveaway to a parent. We want to help our community 
stay as safe as possible, which is why we also reduced the prices of the custom 
face masks fundraiser to $3 for one and $5 for two. 
Our Treasurer, Ms. Seabourne, gave the final update on our popcorn fundraiser. 
The overall highest sellers of the popcorn fundraiser were Jahane Townsend, 
Averi Brockington and Navaeh Earth, who will receive Visa gift cards in the 
amount of $40, $30 and $25 respectively. The highest selling class was 201 and 
the teachers, Ms. Tulloch and Ms. Johnson, have each already received $10 
Amazon gift cards. We sold $9,727.00 worth of popcorn, which means we have 
made a profit of $4,863.50. The current PTO bank balance is $6,980.50. (Please 
see Cash Flow Statement below) We also continued to remind families to 
encourage scholars to handle all devices with care. 
As for new business, PTO encouraged everyone to order their free at-home 
Covid tests and to dress their scholars appropriately for this weather. Lasts, but 
not least, during the meeting a motion was made to forego February’s PTO 
meeting since it is a short month for us and this way, we can begin to gather 
ideas and information on what we would like to present for the upcoming Spring 
semester. We voted and the next PTO meeting will be held on Wednesday, 
March 16th. 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

• After much deliberation, a letter has been drafted to M&T Bank stating that 
ground will be broken next month on the new school building and with the 
money we already have in the bank construction of a foundation and walls can 
begin hence allowing any bank to grant REACS a loan to complete 
construction. A new commitment letter will be drafted with Northfield Bank. 
Meeting with foundation builders tomorrow; meeting with bonded construction 
workers for Iron structure. A new construction fence will be built and 
groundbreaking ceremony will commence soon (date TBD). 

VI. Finance Report
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin 

• Met virtually January 18, 2022, via Zoom meeting platform to discuss current 
budget revision, upcoming budget, other upcoming financial issues affecting 
REACS and marketing strategy for REACS. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday January 24, 2022, at 6:30 

VII. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met January 12, 2022 via Zoom 
• Discussed admin report (teacher observation, 8th grade guidelines, Feb 

activities) 
• Discussed State assessment prep 
• Discussed enrichment programs 
• Want a format for data performing describing progress in classroom (iready, 

etc) 
• Will continue to monitor progress of the school 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

• Met January 12, 2022, via Zoom 
• Discussed 3 vacancies 
• Continuing to address filling vacancies 
• Expressed appreciation to staff for hard work 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:31 PM. Next board meeting is planned 
for Feb 28 h, 2022 at 6:30 pm. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session: 
In executive session a decision was made for ‘an Incentive’ for the 2020-2021 school year which 
will be distributed to all staff and an additional incentive will be given to all staff at the end of the 
2021-2022 school year based on performance. (K. Sandiford made the motion, C. Rice 
seconded; vote was passed). Another decision was made for the 2022-2023 school year for a 
2% increase across the board for staff, an increase of 3% for certified teachers and 2% for 
uncertified teachers; no increase for admin staff. (L. Stephens made the motion, D. Barron 
seconded; vote was passed). The marketing strategy of REACS was addressed and a 
committee will be put together from the board to assist in the marketing campaign for the school. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday February 28, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
L. Hamer (remote), C. Williams (remote), M. Anglin (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. 
Sandiford (remote), S. Brown (remote), J. Hurt (remote), L. Stephens (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 

Guests Present 
C. Walden (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on February 28, 2022 at 6:36 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday February 28, 2022, at 

C. Approve Minutes 
M. Anglin made a motion to Approve Minutes from Janu ary 24,2022 . 
R. Wilson seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 429 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STIDENTS – 67% 

2022-2023 Applications: 

• As of 2/24/22 a total of 415 have been received 
• Lottery applications are due on April 1, 2022 
• Lottery will be held on Tuesday, April 19, 2022 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Preparing for 2023 preliminary budget, due in March 
• Financial and Cash disbursement reports were given to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Dr. Claytisha Walden 

Renewal Next Steps
• 2/14/22 Submitted the Edits to DOE requested Draft Regents Item 
• 3/1/22 Meeting scheduled to review Chancellor’s renewal recommendation along with 

any conditions to be shared if any. 
• Board of Regents Decision – anticipated March/April/May 

School COVID Update
• Continued weekly scholar testing every Friday. 
• We are no longer testing staff members randomly. We are looking for reliable 

agency to come in. 
• We have had 2 COVID positive cases in the school community since January 24th. 

Teacher Development & Support
• Teachers continue to be observed by Administrators. 
• Coaches & Admin conduct Instructional rounds to support ongoing Teaching and 

Learning. 
• Professional Learning takes place during our Wednesday schedule. 
• We have completed the Formal Observation process with the staff. All staff were 

provided with a written evaluation of their observations and performance. Electronic 
copies are on file. 

• The instructional coaches and outside coaches have supported teachers with 
improved pedagogy and data analysis. 

• Data meeting with Data coach Rashid Johnson to review ANet A2 on 2/16/22 

Student Achievement 
• We have administered A2. The data in the attached presentation addressed both A1 

and A2 with a comparison. We will need to focus on the key standards to address 
any gaps. 

• Teachers are working on specific action plans to address gaps. We will focus on 
middle school to increase their growth. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday February 28, 2022, at 

• Admin began conducting one to one meetings with scholars to review data and set 
goals with grades 6-8. 

• After the mid-winter Break, we will focus on test sophistication, testing stamina. We 
are increasing instructional time in Reading/ ELA and Mathematics. STEAM 
periods will focus on Math; Social Studies will focus on the short and extended 
responses. 

• We are preparing for the NYS ELA exams. A mock exam was administered. A 
major trend noticed is that scholars need to work on stamina to complete the exam. 

• Promotion In Doubt Scholars were identified based on all available assessment data. 
Parents were notified. Teacher Actions plans were developed to continue supporting 
these scholars. 

• Parents can help with having students practice on iReady and independent reading 
daily. 

New York State Grades 3-8 Exam Schedule 
• ELA Exam - March 29-30, 2022 
• Math Exam - April 26-27, 2022 
• Science Exam - Grades 4 & 8 Only (May 24-27 & June 6, 2022) 
• To accommodate NYS testing of all Grades 3-8 scholars - K-2 scholars will work 

remotely on ELA and Math Exam days. 

Reading Initiatives
• In conjunction with Read Across America Day, March 2, 2022, scholars will 

continue reading logs, which will be reviewed monthly and prizes will be awarded 
based total minutes read, most books read (by class and by grade). 

• Reading buddies between the Middle School grades and Elementary School grades 

Mathematics Initiatives 
• Pi Day Mar 14, 2022 
• March Olympics- TBA 

PBIS Leadership Incentives
• Continuing to be developed by the leadership team as well as the Leader in Me team. 

Surveying scholars to find incentives that are appropriate and relevant to them. 
• RESPECT FOR ALL WEEK - February 14-18 h 

Enrichment Scholar Activities 
• Mondays 

○ My Brother’s Keeper - Male initiative started on January 31st. 
o Pretty Brown Girls continued 

• Basketball Club Tuesdays - Vaccinated scholars in grades 5-8 
• Cheerleading – TBA 

Black History Month
• REACS had a Black History Month Celebration kick-off. The theme was “I am 

Black History.” 
○ 1 student from Pre-K, Elementary and Middle School will share a 

3-to-4-minute speech, dance, poem etc. letting us know what Black History 
means to them. 

○ Additionally, following the Mid-Winter break there will be a Black History 
Showcase- the purpose will be to highlight Black excellence from the past all 
the way up to the present. 

Personnel Report
• Current vacancies are 8th Grade Math, 

Interventionist, Elementary STEAM. 
○ New teacher hired to fill MS Math role. (pending) 

• TA who declined the vaccine continues to be on 
leave. 

• Dean of Culture Request - Awaiting Board Decision 

Staff Benefits Package – Staff Retention 
We seek to enhance our total 
benefits/compensation package for REACS staff, 
to remain competitive with NYCDOE, Charter 
Schools, Long Island Schools and 
Private Schools. We have had a number of 
individuals who have declined offers or 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday February 28, 2022, at 
left, and after hearing feedback from our current 
staff members, one vital area that 
we would like to look into is how we can improve 
the health insurance package that 
is offered to staff. Improving this would allow us to 
increase retention, attract 
certified teachers and our lower turnover rate. 

IV. PTO Report 
A. Shinequa Brown – No Meeting 
• Provided Pizza and Soda for students on 2/14/22 
• Next PTO meeting 3/16/22 next meeting via Zoom 

V. CEO Report
A. Bishop Calvin Rice – NO REPORT 

VI. Finance Report
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin – NO REPORT 

VII. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 
• Met 2/16/22 @ 6:30 pm via Zoom 
• Went over Admin report (behavior, test scores, etc) 
• Teacher action planning template was discussed 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report 
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 
• Met after academic accountability meeting on 2/16/22 at 7:18 pm via zoom 
• Continuing to address teacher vacancies and middle school concerns 

Adjourn Meeting 
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:13 PM. Next meeting scheduled for 
March 28, 2022. The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

In executive session: 

A motion was made (K. Sandiford) to allow C. Rice to sign a check from allocated construction 
funds to begin construction (excavation, general contracting) for the new REACS school building 
(R. Wilson seconded); vote was passed, one opposed. A motion was made (M. Anglin) to make 
provisions in the budget for a dean of student affairs for the junior high school starting August 
2022 (R. Wilson seconded) vote was passed. Recruitment for all staff for all positions is ongoing. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday March 28, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
L. Hamer (remote), C. Williams (remote), M. Anglin (remote), R. Wilson (absent), K. 
Sandiford (remote), S. Brown (remote), J. Hurt (absent), L. Stephens (absent) 
David Barron (remote, voting privileges remain pending) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 

Guests Present 
C. Walden (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on March 28, 2022 at 6:42 PM. Roll Call of board members 
in attendance 
M. Anglin made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday March 28, 2022, at 6:30 

C. Approve Minutes 
C; Williams made a motion to Approve Minutes from Ma rch 28,2022 . 
K. Sandiford seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-8 STUDENTS – 427 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGE STIDENTS – 67% 

2022-2023 Applications: 

• As of 3/25/22 a total of 557 have been received 
• Lottery applications are due on April 1, 2022 
• Lottery will be held on April 26, 2022 (rescheduled from April 19, 2022 due to Spring 

Break) 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

• Preparing for 2023 preliminary budget, due in March 
• Financial and Cash disbursement reports were given to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie, School Leader 

Renewal Next Steps 

• 3/1/22 Meeting conducted with L. Hazeley to review Chancellor’s renewal 
recommendation 

• Board of Regents Decision – anticipated March/April/May 

School COVID Update
• Continued weekly random testing of scholars every Friday. 
• We are no longer testing staff members randomly. We are looking for reliable 

agency to come in (Pending, outcome not reached) 
• No classroom closures 

Teacher Development & Support
• Teachers continue to be observed by Administrators. 
• Coaches & Admin conduct Instructional rounds to support ongoing Teaching and 

Learning. 
• Professional Learning takes place during our Wednesday schedule. 
• We have completed the Formal Observation process with the staff. All staff were 

provided with a written evaluation of their observations and performance. Electronic 
copies are on file. 

• The instructional coaches and outside coaches have supported teachers with 
pedagogy and data analysis. 

• ELA reteach lessons will be conducted March 29 and March 30 from ANET 

New York State Grades 3-8 Exam Schedule 
• ELA Exam - March 29-30, 2022 
• Math Exam - April 26-27, 2022 
• Science Exam - Grades 4 & 8 Only (May 24-27 & June 6, 2022) 
• To accommodate NYS testing of all Grades 3-8 scholars - K-2 scholars will work 

remotely on ELA and Math Exam days. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday March 28, 2022, at 6:30 

Reading Initiatives
• In conjunction with Read Across America Day, March 2, 2022, scholars will 

continue reading logs, which will be reviewed monthly and prizes will be awarded 
based total minutes read, most books read (by class and by grade). 

• Reading buddies between the Middle School grades and Elementary School grades 

Mathematics Initiatives 
• Pi Day Mar 14, 2022 
• March Olympics- TBA 

PBIS Leadership Incentives
• Continuing to be developed by the leadership team as well as the Leader in Me team. 

Surveying scholars to find incentives that are appropriate and relevant to them. 
• RESPECT FOR ALL WEEK - February 14-18 h 

Enrichment Scholar Activities 
• Mondays 

○ My Brother’s Keeper - Male initiative started on January 31st. 
o Pretty Brown Girls continued 

• Basketball Club Tuesdays - Vaccinated scholars in grades 5-8 
• Cheerleading – TBA 
• Language Spanish and Mandarin afterschool programs in affiliation with International 

students 

Personnel Report
• Current vacancies are 8th Grade Math, 

Interventionist, Elementary STEAM. 
○ New teacher hired to fill MS Math role. (pending) 

• TA who declined the vaccine continues to be on 
leave. 

• Dean of Culture Request – Approved by Board, 
awaiting resumes of candidates 

Staff Benefits Package – Staff Retention 
We seek to enhance our total 
benefits/compensation package for REACS staff, 
to remain competitive with NYCDOE, Charter 
Schools, Long Island Schools and 
Private Schools. We have had a number of 
individuals who have declined offers or 
left, and after hearing feedback from our current 
staff members, one vital area that 
we would like to look into is how we can improve 
the health insurance package that 
is offered to staff. Improving this would allow us to 
increase retention, attract 
certified teachers and our lower turnover rate. 
(Awaiting follow-up from Administrative Staff, 
School Leader to take the lead in obtaining 
relevant information) 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown – PTO Meeting March 16, 2022 (see corresponding report) 

VP of PTO resigned 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice – 

Groundbreaking ceremony scheduled March 12, 2022 postponed extenuating 
circumstances ) 
Construction commenced March 21, 2022 
Use of funds allocated by the Board $324,000 (detailed analysis included with 
CEO report) 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday March 28, 2022, at 6:30 
VI. Finance Report

A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin – NO REPORT 

VII. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 
• Met 3/16/22 @ 6:30 pm via Zoom 
• Went over Admin report (behavior, test scores, etc) 
• Teacher action planning template was discussed 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 
• Met after academic accountability meeting on 3/16/22 via zoom 
• Continuing to address teacher vacancies and middle school concerns 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
second and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:50 PM. Next meeting scheduled for April 
25, 2022. The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
L. Hamer 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday April 25, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), M. 
Anglin (remote), S. Brown (remote), D. Barron (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on April 25, 2022 at 6:32 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
M. Anglin seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday April 25, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-7 STUDENTS – 427 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS – 67% 

ENROLLMENT: 2022 - 2023 

• 610 Applications received as of 4.14.22 
• Charters can accept applications until 8.30.22 but only applicants that submitted on or before 

4.1.22 will be included in the lottery 
• Our lottery will be held on May 4, 2022 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

•Construction checks processed 
•Financial Summary- See attached 
•Cash Disbursement-See attached 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla 

CONGRATULATIONS ROCHDALE!!!!! 
● REGENTS VOTED: That the Board of Regents finds that Rochdale Early 
Advantage Charter School: (1) meets the requirements set out in 
Article 56 of the Education Law, and all other applicable laws, rules 
and regulations; (2) the applicant can demonstrate the ability to 
operate the school in an educationally and fiscally sound manner; (3) 
granting the application is likely to improve student learning and 
achievement and materially further the purposes set out in 
subdivision two of Section twenty-eight hundred fifty of this article 
and (4) granting the application would have a significant educational 
benefit to the students expected to attend the charter school, and the 
Board of Regents therefore approves the renewal application of
Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School and that a renewal charter
be issued, and that its provisional charter be extended for a term up
through and including June 30, 2027. 

School COVID Update 
● Continued weekly scholar COVID testing every Friday. 
● We have had 6 COVID positive cases in the school community since 
March 1st. We are utilizing the test kits for the TEST TO STAY plan. 
We sent staff and scholars home with test kits over the holiday break. 

New York State Grades 3-8 Exam Schedule 
● Math Exam - April 26-27, 2022 
● Science Exam - Grades 4 & 8 Only (May 24-27 & June 6, 2022) 
●To accommodate NYS testing of all Grades 3-8 scholars - K-2 scholars 
will work remotely on ELA and Math Exam days. Based on the testing 
mods we are using every classroom and office space to accommodate the

       scholars. 
●PTO will provide special lunch for the scholars on day 1. 
●School providing breakfast on day two. 
● NYSESLAT April 24 -May 2022 

Grant Applications Completed 
● RESO A Borough President 
● RESO A Councilmember Williams 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday April 25, 2022 at 6:30 PM 
● Summer Boost NYC is a $50 million philanthropic 
effort supported by Bloomberg Philanthropies and 
managed by Building Impact aimed at supporting 
K-8 charter schools in New York City offering 
summer programming to address the social and 
academic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. All 
NYC charter schools are eligible to apply for 
funding. Completing application. 

Summer School 2022 
● Awaiting decision from the Board Personnel Report 
● Teacher Assistant on extended leave returned 4/25/22. She is 
supporting PREK. 
● Continue to review resumes and meet potential candidates for 
the Dean position. 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening, executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents and guardians joining 
us tonight. Our April PTO meeting was held on Wednesday, April 13th via Zoom, which 
was the second Wednesday of the month being that we were on Spring break last 
week. We had a scholar mask giveaway; and PTO received a list of scholars that 
participated in the Black History Kickoff, so we hand delivered a mask to each of them 
on the list on Thursday, April 14th because keeping our school community safe is still a 
priority. 
April’s meeting was short. We did not have many questions from parents this month, 
but the couple we had were addressed as usual. (Questions attached) 
PTO took the time to thank all the parents and staff that donated money for the 
scholars to have pizza for lunch on the first day of ELA testing March 29th. Everyone 
was so appreciative. PTO will also be supplying a pizza lunch tomorrow, April 26th, for 
their first day of Math state testing. We want the scholars relaxed, feeling good and 
knowing that they have support coming in from all angles. 
Field day, or should I say days, are on the horizon and PTO is asking for volunteers. 
Pre-k through 4th grade will have their field day on Thursday, May 26th and 5th through 
8th grade will have their field day on Wednesday, June 1st. We need all hands-on 
deck. There are a lot of moving parts to make this a great day for our school community 
and we need all the volunteers we can get. Our team has created a Google form asking 
what time, etc. volunteers can help and that will go out via robocall and email, this week 
hopefully. 
Elections are also coming up and will be held on May 18th at our PTO meeting. It was 
made known that all current executive board members would like to stay on if voted 
back in and that the 2nd VP position is completely vacant. Anyone who would like to 
join our executive team can email PTO up until 3pm on Friday, May 6th with their 
name, scholar association, position desired and brief background on themselves. Our 
email can be found on the school’s website. 
Tomorrow, April 26th, PTO is starting our sock fundraiser. They are lovely socks that 
showcase our school spirit. Its Spring and the weather is getting nicer. Our young 
ladies will start wearing skirts and jumpers more, so why not have them wear cute, 
stylish socks and show their pride? Sock sizes are Youth (xs), small, medium, large, 
and extra-large. One pair of socks is $12 or buy 2 pairs for $22, in honor of our classes 
of 2022. A robocall and email, with flyer and Google order form, will also go out 
pertaining to this fundraiser. Once order and funds are received, PTO will deliver to the 
scholar’s class. We will probably do deliveries once a week depending on the number 
of orders received, so please support. 
Our treasurer, Ms. Seabourne gave our financial update (Bank Balance along with 
Cash Flow Statement was attached for Board Review). Fundraisers and donations, 
which are welcomed all year long, ensure that we can do great things for Teacher’s 
Appreciation Day, International Day, field day, etc. 
To end things, we reminded parents that next week May 2nd through May 6th is 
Teachers Appreciation Week, with Tuesday, May 3rd being Teachers Appreciation 
Day. Please let all educators you know just how much you appreciate them. As a 
reminder, our next PTO meeting is on Wednesday, May 18th. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday April 25, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

V. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

Maintenance/Facility and new Construction: 

• Construction commenced on Monday March the 21 and they are moving 
at warp speed in part because conditions have been favorable and also 
because the foundation contractor is very efficient. In fact, if we can 
maintain this pace, I feel we may very well complete this project in 14-15 
months. One third of the basement is complete and they have begun 
digging the second of three phases. Construction commenced utilizing the 
second allocation of money voted on by the board in the November 2021 
meeting because M & T Bank have set the loan closing for the latter part of 
April, by then we will have the foundation in and ready to erect steel if things 
continue to move at the pace we are moving. 

• The building department is now requiring that we have a rooftop playground 
which raises our budget another $500,000. DASNY have given us approval to 
use the restored grant ($250,000) towards this project, I will somehow someway 
find the other half. 

• The bank is finalizing the loan and should be setting a closing date prior to our 
next board meeting.  Until the closing we will continue to spend from the additional 
funds that were authorized in our January board meeting.  We are in the process 
of transferring our account to M & T and when the processis finish, they will pay 
all contractors directly as we submit and they approve vouchers. 

• To date we have expensed $542,500. 

VI. Finance Report – NO MEETING THIS MONTH 
Mrs. Marcia Anglin 

VII. Academic Accountability Report – NO MEETING THIS MONTH 
Mrs. Chene Williams 

VIII. Personnel Committee Report – NO MEETING THIS MONTH 
Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 6:58 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session: 
Bishop C. Rice made a motion (M. Anglin seconded) to give the family of Ms. Highsmith (kitchen worker) who 
recently passed away $1,000.00 in financial assistance. Because of the donation from the Bloomberg 
Foundation, a summer school program was discussed. Board positions were also discussed (returining and 
stepping down). 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday May 23, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
C. Williams (remote), L. Hamer (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), S. 
Brown (remote), J. Hurd (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Julie Padilla (remote), Dr.  Claytisha Walden (remote), Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie 
(remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on April 25, 2022 at 6:37 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday May 23, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

C. Approve Minutes 
K. Sandiford made a motion to Approve Minutes from March and April, 2022 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report 
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-7 STUDENTS – 423 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS – 67% 

ENROLLMENT: 2022 - 2023 

• REACS lottery was held on May 4, 2022 
• Pre-K - Offered 27 seats 
• K – Offered 5 seats 
• All other grades went directly to waitlist 
• Parents were notified within 24 hours of decision. We are now accepting documentation 

for all accepted students. A few seats were declined so we started pulling from the 
waitlist. 

• 558 on the waitlist 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

•Pre-Audit begins June 9th 
•Financial Summary - sent to the board 
•Cash Disbursement - sent to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
A. Mrs. Sylvia Fairclough-Leslie/Dr. Julie Padilla /

  Dr. Claytisha Walden 

School COVID Update 
•We have had 11 COVID positive cases in the school 
community since May 2, 2022. We are utilizing the test kits 
for the TEST TO STAY plan. We sent staff and scholars 
home with test kits every weekend. Test kits are made 
available as needed to families and staff. 

New York State Grades 3-8 Exam Schedule 
•Science Exam - Grades 4 & 8 Only (May 24-27 & June 6, 
2022) 
•  NYSESLAT April 24 -May 2022 
•Grade 3 was selected for Field Test in ELA 5/24/22 

End of Year (EOY) Interim Assessment 
•  I-ready - June 2nd - 8th 
•ANET – Completed 

End of Year Activities 
•May 26, 2022 Field Day-PreK, K, 1, 2, 3, & 4 
•May 26, 2022 College Tour 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday May 23, 2022 at 6:30 PM 

Summer School Grant 
•We received the Summer BOOST Grant for up to 
$224,000. 

Week 1 – Tuesday, 7/5-Friday, 7/8 
Week 2- Monday, 7/11-Thursday, 7/14 
Week 3 – Monday, 7/18-Thursday, 7/21 
Week 4 – Monday, 7/25-Thursday, 7/28 
Week 5 – Monday, 8/1-Thursday, 8/4 
•Summer program is fully staffed 
•Teacher Professional Development Week of June 27th -
Virtually 
•Ordering Materials as prescribed by the Laviana Group 
who was the Partner Identified in the Grant Application. 

End of Year Activities 
•8th Grade College Trip 5/26/22 Adelphi University 
•Field Day PreK-Grade 4 Baisley Park 5/26/22 
•Field Day Grades 5-8 Baisley Park 6/1/22 
•5th Grade Senior Trip - Club Getaway, Kent CT. 
•5th Grade Dance - 6/8/22 Gym 
•8th Grade Prom -6/9/22 Gym 
• International Day 6/10/22 
•8th Grade Senior Trip 6/14/22 Adventureland, Long Island 
•PreK & Kindergarten Graduation 6/15/22 NJWC @ 9:30 
am 
•Grade 5 Graduation 6/22/22 NJWC @ 9:30 am 
•Grade 8 Graduation 6/22/22 NJWC @ 1:00 pm 
•Last of school 6/24/22 

Personnel Report 
•Ms. Daily-Duperon returned on 5/3/22 Floating support 
classes and provide coverages. 
•Dr. Padilla - scheduled to return 5/16/22 
•Continue to review resumes and meet potential candidates 
for the Dean position. Interviews scheduled for 5/25/22 
Start date will be August. 
•Preference Sheet distributed. Everyone said they are 
returning, shared their choice for next year’s assignment, 
shared professional development topics they think they 
need/want to grow. 
•19 Teachers remain uncertified. I am meeting with each 
individually to identify next steps for each. Note that on Apr 
24, 2022 NYS eliminated the ED TPA assessment that was 
holding back several teachers. 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown 

Good evening Executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents, and guardians joining us tonight. 
Our May PTO meeting was held on Wednesday, May 18th via Zoom. We had a scholar sock 
giveaway. May’s meeting was fairly short, but extremely informative. We did not have many 
questions from parents this month, but the couple we had were addressed as usual. PTO took 
the time to thank all the parents and staff that donated money for the scholars to have a pizza 
lunch on April 26th, which was the first day of Math State testing. Again, our scholars were very 
thankful. We also thanked everyone for the all the donations that have come in thus far to help 
us make field day a success. Every dollar helps and with more scholars, and an increase in the 
price of food, we are appreciative of all the help we can get. No donation will be turned away. 
Parents have really gotten involved and volunteered their time to help both field days run 
smoothly and that makes us so happy. We will be contacting everyone who has filled out a form 
to volunteer for the first field day, tomorrow evening. We informed everyone that we are still 
selling masks, one for $3 or two for $5, in an effort to keep our school community as safe as we 
can. Ms. Seabourne also announced that our sock fundraiser is doing well, with $1,130 in sales. 
(Bank balance was given to the board). Our lovely scholar Brook Rodgers has sold 56 sock all 
by herself. We still have Youth (xs) and small sizes available; one pair for $12 or two pairs for 
$22 in honor of our Classes of 2022. So there is still time to make a purchase. Once order form 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday May 23, 2022 at 6:30 PM 
is completed and funds are received, sock orders are delivered to scholars’ classrooms; and 
customers are notified via email of delivery. Teacher’s Appreciation Day was on May 3rd, and we 
delivered gifts to each staff member at REACS, whether they were an educator or administrator. 
(Picture attached) We are blessed to have such a great community dedicate themselves to 
scholars on a daily basis. On May 11th PTO presented our first 8th grade graduating class from 
REACS with their graduation gifts from us. (Picture attached) The scholars were pleased with 
their custom duffel bags. 

Elections took place on May 18th at our PTO meeting. All current executive board members 
were voted back into their respective positions; and our bylaws will be amended to state a 
current board is able to serve another 2 terms in their respective positions, after their initial 2 
terms end, if the board members are willing and membership is satisfied with their service. So 
you all get us for another 2 years and we are all happy to serve again. We also planned to vote 
on a 2nd VP, but the person who was interested in the position was having technical issues, so 
we will attempt to vote again in June. 

To end things, we reminded parents that we will always stay dedicated to our mission. PTO will 
provide snack bags to 4th and 8th grade on June 6th when they sit for their Science Test. We 
want to boost morale and support them in doing their best. We will also supply juice and water 
on International Day, June 10th. As a reminder, our last PTO meeting of this school year is on 
Wednesday, June 15th. 

I. CEO Report - NO OFFICIAL REPORT
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

• Had a water sample tested for elevator shaft 
• Met with attorney and bank wants a new resolution separating the leases; one for the church 

and one for REACS; once close is completed, two separate checks will be written to pay 
mortgage. (Pending board vote) 

II. Finance Report – NO REPORT 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin 

III. Academic Accountability Report
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

• Met May 4 h via Zoom at 6:30 p.m. 
• Assistance to get uncertified staff certified 
• Staff contracts 
• Testing 
• Scheduling 
• COVID Updates 
• Summer School 
• End of Year activities 

IV. Personnel Committee Report 
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

• Met May 4th via Zoom at 6:30 p.m. 
• Plan to offer contracts to all current staff 
• Staff appreciation week was completed successfully 
• Dean position interviews will be underway shortly 
• Pay scale for summer school 

Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session: 

(1) C. Williams made a motion for the board voted to accept the resolution to guaranty (J. Hurd seconded); 
vote was passed. 
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(2) The board voted accept the resolution to accept the certificate of trustee resolutions (J. Hurd seconded; 

vote was passed. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School 

Minutes 

REACS Board Meeting 

Date and Time 
Monday June 27, 2022, at 6:30 PM 

Location 
Via Zoom Online Meeting Platform 

Directors Present 
L. Hamer (remote), C. Will iams (remote), R. Wilson (remote), K. Sandiford (remote), L. 
Stephens (remote), M. Anglin (remote), S. Brown (remote), D. Barron (remote) 

Directors Absent 

Ex Officio Members Present 
C. Rice (remote) 

Guests Present 
Dr. Claytisha Walden (remote), Tawanna Muniz (remote) 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance 

B. Call the Meeting to Order 
L. Hamer called a meeting of the board of directors of Rochdale Early Advantage 
Charter School to order on June 27, 2022, at 6:37 PM 
R. Wilson made a motion to Approve Agenda. 
C. Williams seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday June 27, 2022, at 6:30 

C. Approve Minutes 
D. Barron made a motion to Approve Minutes from May 23, 2022 
K. Sandiford seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

II. Business & Operations Report
A. Mrs. Tawana Muniz 

STUDENT DATA DASHBOARD: 

• UNIVERSAL PRE-K STUDENTS – 36 
• K-7 STUDENTS – 423 
• SPED STUDENTS – 54 
• ELL – 5 
• ECONOMIC DISADVANTAGED STUDENTS – 67% 

ENROLLMENT: 2022 - 2023 

• 618 on the waitlist 
• All students have been bumped up into the ’23 school year 

COMPLIANCE/FINANCE: 

•Pre-Audit completed 
•Recording and closing out 2022 
•Preparing reporting for ARP grants/annual report 
•Per pupil $17,626.00 
•Financial Summary – sent to the board 
•Cash Disbursement – sent to the board 

III. School Leader Report 
Dr. Claytisha Walden/Ms. Chene Williams 

•School COVID Update 
•We have had 8 COVID positive cases in the school community since May 23, 2022. We are 
utilizing the test kits for the TEST TO STAY plan. We send staff and scholars home with 
test kits every weekend. Test kits are made available as needed to families and staff. 

•New York State Grades 3-8 Exam Schedule 
•Science Exam took place May 24-27 & June 6, 2022 
•NYSESLAT April 24 -May 2022 
•Grade 3 was selected for Field Test in ELA 5/24/22 

•End of Year (EOY) Interim Assessment 
• I-ready - June 2nd - 8th Completed 
•ANET - June 15th Completed 

•End of Year Activities Completed 
•8th Grade College Trip 5/26/22 Adelphi University 
•Field Day PreK-Grade 4 Basily Park 5/26/22 
•Field Day Grades 5-8 Basily Park 6/1/22 
•5th Grade Senior Trip - Club Getaway, Kent CT 6/6/22 
•5th Grade Dance 6/8/22 Gym 
•8th Grade Prom 6/9/22 Gym 
• International Day 6/10/22 
•8th Grade Senior Trip 6/14/22 Adventureland, Long Island 
•PreK & Kindergarten Graduation 6/15/22 NJWC @ 9:30 am 
•Father’s Day Breakfast 6/17/22 
•Staff End of Year Party 6/17/22 
•Grade 5 Graduation 6/22/22 NJWC @ 9:30 am 
•Grade 8 Graduation 6/22/22 NJWC @ 1:00 pm 
•Last of school 6/24/22 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday June 27, 2022, at 6:30 
Summer BOOST 
•Total of approximately 140 scholars recommended to participate. 
•Parents are requested to complete the Google Form that was sent to register their 
scholar. 
•Virtual Staff professional development begins on June 27th. 
•Program begins July 5th 

2022-23 Planning 
•Attached Discipline code revisions as per renewal recommendations. 
Board Approval needed 
•Attached Calendar for 2022-2023 school year. Board Approval needed. 
•Selected REACS staff will be participating in NYSED Restorative Justice training (free 
four-day, online). The training will focus on the following in highly interactive sessions: 

o Overview of Restorative Justice: history, principles, and research 
o Restorative Justice and its connection to NYSED Social Emotional 

Learning Benchmarks, Mental Health Education Standards and Culturally 
Responsive Education Framework 

o The stages of systemic implementation including embedding Restorative 
Justice Practices into policy and Codes of Conduct 

o Establishing accountability systems including Monthly Discipline Data Reporting 
and Monitoring 

o Methods for holding school leaders accountable for the implementation of 
Restorative Justice Practices through hiring and evaluation protocols 

o Ongoing funding and supports needed to ensure sustainability 
o Action planning to support a mindful implementation process that includes key 

stakeholders 

Personnel Report 
•22-23 Organizational Change to support teacher development with two Coaching positions. 
This split the support for teachers between Elementary and Middle School. The Prek -8th 
grade content span between Elementary and Middle school is vast. Consultant Coaching 
would be reduced. Two REACS teachers have been to take on the Elementary Coaching. 
They have recently completed Educational leadership degrees. They have been with 
REACS for 10 and 4 years. This also demonstrates career ladder opportunities at REACS 
Board Approval needed 
•Assistant Principal resignation effective 6/27. AP posting is on Indeed. Began reviewing 
resumes and recreating a hiring team/committee. Two candidates will be recommended. 
• IT Support Specialist resignation effective 5/31. Posting is on Indeed. 
•Dean of School Culture candidates are being reviewed. Three candidates came in for an in-
person round two interviews. 
•Staff absenteeism is extremely high as staff members are utilizing their days off since there is 
not a true incentive for staff to keep their days/nor do they get paid out. 12 days June 
absenteeism breakdown: 

o May 31: 8 
o June 1: 4 
o June 2: 9 
o June 3: 12 
o June 6: 4 
o June 7: 7 
o June 8: 5 
o June 9: 5 
o June 10: 4 
o June 13: 12 
o June 14: 11 
o June 15: 4 

IV. PTO Report
A. Shinequa Brown

Good evening, executive board, School Leaders, staff, parents and guardians joining us tonight. 
Our last PTO meeting of the school year was held on Wednesday, June 15 h via Zoom. June’s 
meeting was fairly short, and just a wrap up of our school year on a whole. We had a few 
questions from parents this month, and they were addressed as usual. (Questions attached and 
sent to board). We had a special scholar giveaway of a STEM lab set and it was delivered to the 
lucky scholar on Tuesday, June 21st. PTO took the time to thank all the parents and staff for 
their constant support of the organization whether through donation of money or their time 
through volunteering. We recognized a special parent, Chef Jordan Smith, who has three 
scholars at our school. Chef Smith owns “It’s A Mans Thing Catering” company and not only 

3 of 6  



   
   

 
  

  
 

 

   
 

  

 
  

 
  

 
  

     
   

    

  
  

   
  
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

     
     

   
  

  

     

 
  

 
 

Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday June 27, 2022, at 6:30 
manned the grill on both field days but also came back and cooked hamburgers and hot dogs 
on June 3rd for the scholars as an impromptu lunch because we had so much food left over from 
the field days. We also recognized the restaurant “The Door,” as they donated pans of delicious 
hot food, fruit, and utensils on both field days. The love shown to our school community was 
simply amazing. 5th Grade received their graduation gifts, which were 20oz aluminum water 
bottles, from the PTO on Thursday, June 2nd. Pre-K & Kindergarten received their gifts, which 
were customized insulated lunch bags, on Tuesday, June 21st. (Pictures of both are attached) If 
you remember, as a reading incentive, PTO promised to give the top female and male readers 
of Middle School a $25 gift card, and they were delivered to the school on Tuesday, June 21st 

along with McDonald Arch cards for the top student in each class from Pre-K through 5th grade. 
On International Day, we supplied water and juice, while our scholars gave us a show. The PTO 
Executive board decided we will hold a special election in the fall to fill the 2nd VP position. If 
more than one person is interested, then the school will assist us with the voting process. We 
welcome all who are dedicated to serving our scholars and school community. Ms. Seabourne, 
our Treasurer, announced that our sock fundraiser is doing well, with $1,240 in sales. Our 
highest seller was a 5th grade graduate, Brook Rodgers. She sold $618 worth of socks and 
received a $50 gift card. We still have 36 pairs of socks left in Youth(xs) and small sizes. 
Our end of the year PTO bank balance was sent to the board. Overall, from PTO’s perspective, 
this school year was a success for us. This was the first year with everyone back in the building 
full time, and although there were adjustments to be made, everyone adapted to the best of their 
ability. PTO attempted to encourage our staff and scholars by having pizza lunches, fundraisers, 
testing snack bags, appreciation gifts, incentives and more. We never want our REACS 
community to ever feel unsupported or unappreciated. A huge THANK YOU to our amazing 
REACS educators and staff who are committed to our scholars. I know they probably got sick of 
seeing me, but the goal was to champion, collaborate, show appreciation, and put smiles on 
everyone’s faces because they deserve it. Thank you to our parents, who rose to the occasion 
when it came to the sock fundraiser, donations, and volunteering. Last but not least, thank you to 
our scholars who didn’t hesitate to lend a helping hand and were always so respectful when they 
saw PTO. We understand it is our combined efforts that make us successful. And of course, thank 
you to the PTO team for your hard work, devotion, and time this school year. We look forward to 
what lies ahead and have already begun discussions on how to make next school year even 
better. Suggestions are always welcomed. Our email address can be found on the school’s 
website. 

I. CEO Report 
A. Bishop Calvin Rice 

• In the final stages of foundation completion for the new school. Steel will be erected after 
foundation is complete; contract with steel company is finalized 

• School lunch program: I and Ms. Muniz met with current company will discontinue serving lunch 
to school as REACS has exceeded the student capacity (cafeteria needed for new school 
population). Current kitchen needs $75-80K in upgrades and current company wants full control 
of kitchen, space for 5 people with changing facilities and office. Current company will supply 
lunch for upcoming school year. Looking at companies to supply lunch after ’22-’23 school year. 
Another option on the table is to create a new kitchen in the new school building (additional 
costs will be incurred). 

II. Finance Report 
A. Mrs. Marcia Anglin 

• Committee met on 6/22/22 and 6/24/22; Staff salaries were discussed and the upcoming 
school year budget. 

III. Academic Accountability Report 
A. Mrs. Chene Williams 

The Committee met virtually on Wednesday, June 20, 2022, at 7:00 PM. The following items were 
discussed: 
• The Pre-K and K graduations had successfully taken place. 
• An update on students and staff affected by Covid was given. 
• Testing results from the I-Ready and A-Net tests and comparative data will be discussed at the 

July academic meeting. 
• End of the year activities were announced. 
• Summer Boost teachers are to be trained. 
• Additional students are needed to fill summer slots. 
• The Discipline Code will be discussed with the Board. 
• Restorative Justice Staff will also be trained. 
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Rochdale Early Advantage Charter School - REACS Board Meeting - Minutes - Monday June 27, 2022, at 6:30 
• Admin is discussing whether coaches should be utilized in the summer 

The next meeting will be held on July 11, 2022. 

IV. Personnel Committee Report – NO MEETING 
A. Mrs. Kamala Sandiford 

Adjourn Meeting 
L. Stephens was nominated by M. Anglin for vice-chair of the REACS School board; M> Anglin also made the 
motion to accept L. Stephens as vice-chair for the REACS School Board (C. Williams seconded); vote was 
passed. There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, 
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:25 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
R. Wilson 

The meeting was adjourned for executive session. 
In executive session: 

- Staff salaries were discussed. 
- K. Sandiford made a motion to accept the ’22-’23 budget with any necessary corrections 

(D. Barron seconded); vote was passed. 
- D. Barron made a motion to address a Cost-of-Living Increase (C.O.L.A.) to staff salaries 

(R. Wilson seconded); vote was passed. 
- R. Wilson made a motion to accept a change in the base pay for unlicensed teachers with 

bachelor’s degree and no experience (C. Williams seconded); vote was passed. 
- D. Barron made a motion to accept the modified calendar for the ’22-’23 school year (C. 

Rice seconded); vote was passed. 
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